This is the 1st affidavit
of Paul Antoniadis in this case
and was made on June 27, 2024

S 244212

Vancouver Registry

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT,
S.B.C. 2002, ¢.57, AS AMENDED

AND

IN THE MATTER OF GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC., & THOSE ENTITIES LISTED
IN SCHEDULE “A”

PETITIONERS

AFFIDAVIT

I, Paul Antoniadis, businessperson, of 814 - 470 Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia,
AFFIRM THAT:

1. I am the Chief Executive Officer of good natured Products Inc. (“GDNP PubCo”), one of
the petitioners in these proceedings. I have held this position since June, 2015. In my role
as Chief Executive Officer of GDNP PubCo, I am responsible for overseeing the day-to-
day operations of GDNP PubCo and the petitioners listed in Schedule “A” (collectively,
the “Petitioners” or the “Company”), their liquidity management and, ultimately, for
assisting in their restructuring process. I am familiar with the business and have relied upon
the various books and records of the Petitioners in preparing this affidavit. As such, 1 have
personal knowledge of the matters deposed to herein. Where I have relied on other sources
of information, I have so stated and I believe them to be true. In preparing this affidavit, [
have also consulted with members of the senior management teams of, and the financial

and legal advisors to, the Petitioners.
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This affidavit is made in support of an application by the Petitioners for an order (the
“Initial Order”) and relief under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C.
1985, c. C-36, as amended (the “CCAA”) as set out in the Petitioners’ petition to the court
(the “Petition™).

References to currency in this affidavit are to Canadian dollars unless otherwise specified.

A. Introduction

4.

The Company’s business units and operations in Canada and the United States are directly

and indirectly wholly owned by the public company, GDNP PubCo.

As detailed further below, the primary business of the Company is producing and
distributing everyday products made from the highest possible percentage of renewable,
plant-based materials, in Canada and the United States (collectively, the “GDNP
Business”). The Company’s customer base includes retailers, food producers, food
packers, consumer product companies, restaurants, packaging thermoforming

manufacturers and other industrial processors.

The Company has commenced these proceedings to stabilize its business, obtain urgently
required interim debtor-in-possession (“DIP”) financing, continue the implementation of
its operational restructuring efforts, and to effect an investment in, or sale of the Company
(or part thereof) with another party (or parties) identified in the course of the proposed

SISP (as defined below) (in any case, a “Transaction”).

The Company has limited remaining cash on hand and is unable to make payments on its
secured funded debt obligations as they become due. Absent obtaining additional financing
in the near term, the Company also will be unable to meet its normal course obligations as
they fall due. As such, the Company is insolvent and the relief sought herein is urgently
required for the Company to maintain the GDNP Business, preserve value for stakeholders,

and maintain the status quo.

If the relief sought in the Petition is granted, the Petitioners intend to bring an application
to be heard within 10 days of the granting of the Initial Order (the “Comeback Hearing”)
seeking an amended and restated Initial Order (the “ARIO”).
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B. Overview and Events Leading to CCAA

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Company was founded in 2006 as Solegear Bioplastics Inc. The Company was
continued into British Columbia in March 2015 (following a reverse takeover with Rodeo

Capital III Corp.), and changed its name to “good natured Products Inc.” in October 2017.

The Company is at the forefront of North America’s shift toward sustainability, showcasing
over 90 plant-based packaging designs and an extensive portfolio of more than 400
products and services. These offerings are purposefully designed and manufactured locally
in Canada and the US to reduce environmental impact by using more renewable materials,
less fossil fuel, and eliminating chemicals of concern. The Company engineers and
distributes a diverse range of bio-based products across various sectors, including grocery,
restaurant, electronics, automotive, and pharmaceutical via both wholesale and direct

channels.

The Company is headquartered in Vancouver, British Columbia and has 143 employees.

79 employees are located in Canada and 64 are located in the US.

The Company experienced exponential growth from 2016 through 2022, growing revenues
from $146,000 to a peak of $101,000,000 in 2022. The Company’s growth was driven from
organic initiatives, the organic acquisition of a large US food producer client (the “US
Food Producer Client”), and the completion of four corporate acquisitions from 2020

through 2022.

Despite this growth, the Company faced financial pressures due to various factors

stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic.

From about 2021 through 2022, the Company faced external supply chain disruptions and
inflationary cost increases, resulting in higher costs associated with materials, labour,
energy, logistics and fulfillment. In anticipation of higher demand levels caused by the
supply chain disruptions, and the organic acquisition of the large US Food Producer Client,
the Company made the strategic decision to make acquisitions and capital investments, in

an attempt to stabilize and expand production capacity, and to increase material inventory
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levels. This increased debt levels, as well as interest, labour, fulfilment, and warehousing

costs.

15. From May 2022 to December 2022, Canadian federal interest rates increased from 0.50%
t0 4.25%, while US federal interest rates climbed from 0.75% to 4.50%. The rapid increase
in interest rates increased debt servicing levels for the Company while causing macro-

economic uncertainty for consumers and equity investors.

16.  Revenuein FY 2023 decreased by 24% compared to FY 2022. This decrease was primarily
due to lower order volumes in Q3 2024 from the large US Food Producer Client, and a
general reduction in demand from industrial thermoforming customers, causing a 46%
decline in the Company’s revenues for the industrial business group. This decline in

industrial thermoforming customer sales was linked, in part, to:
(a) softening macroeconomic conditions caused in part by higher interest rates;

(b) customers de-stocking higher inventory levels built-up to avoid widespread supply

chain disruptions during and after the COVID-19 pandemic;

(©) year-over-year decrease in average selling price cause by lower demand and lower

input costs, such as ocean freight costs; and

(d)  capital investment made by industrial thermoforming customers to extrude their

own product instead of buying it from the Company.

17. Revenue in Q1 2024 declined by 24% compared to Q1 2023. This declines was primarily

due to:
(a) lower order volumes from the large US Food Producer Client

(b) an abnormally soft month of January 2024 for the industry, especially apparent in
the Company’s industrial business group, which continues to face lower demand

levels, increased market competitiveness, and volatility; and

() the Company’s decision to fully exit a legacy petroleum-based industrial business

group product line.
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18.  The challenges described above are compounded by:

(2)

(b)

continued interest rate increases, further raising the Company’s debt interest
finance costs to approximately $8.5 million forecasted in 2024 (compared to
approximately $7.7 million in 2023, $5.6 million in 2022, and $4.6 million in
2021); and

lower industrial and US Food Producer Client sales volumes reducing the
Company’s asset base lending value, requiring the Company to allocate more of its

cash to pay down the Wells Fargo Facility (as defined below).

19.  The Company has taken various steps to address its financial challenges. Most recently:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)
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throughout FY 2023, the Company undertook measures to reduce its selling,

general, and administrative expenses by approximately $3,078,000;

on February 1, 2024, the Company announced a cost reduction process to address
declining revenue in the petroleum-based portion of its industrial business group.
These actions were expected to result in approximately $1,200,000 in annualized

payroll reductions;

on February 14, 2024, the Company announced an update to its cost reduction
efforts, indicating it completed corporate cost reductions in a variety of functional
areas, including wages and selling, general and administrative expenses, which
were expected to result in annualized savings of approximately $1,800,000. the
Company estimated it will incur approximately $450,000 in one-time expenses

associated with these reductions;

on February 14, 2024, the Company announced the launch of a non-brokered
private placement financing (the “Offering”) for 33,333,333 units (the “Units” and
each a “Unit”) of GDNP PubCo at a price of $0.06 per Unit for aggregate gross
proceeds of $2,000,000. The Offering was subject to an over-allotment option,
allowing GDNP PubCo to issue an additional 50,000,000 Units for gross proceeds
of $3,000,000. Each Unit consists of one common share in the capital of GDNP



(©)

®
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PubCo and one common share purchase warrant of GDNP PubCo. Each warrant
would entitle the holder thereof to acquire one common share (a “Warrant Share”)
at an exercise price per Warrant Share of $0.08 for a period of 30 months from the
closing of the Offering. On March 21, 2024, the Company announced it closed the
first tranche of the Offering, by issuing 15,639,998 Units at $0.06 per Unit for gross
proceeds of $0.9 million. Prior to the closing of the first tranche, insiders of the
Company subscribed for a total of 5,170,000 Units for total gross proceeds of
approximately $300,000, on June 21, 2024, the Company announced the private

placement was closed;

on February 20, 2024, the Company announced it signed a definitive agreement to
refinance the mortgage outstanding on the land and building located at the
Company’s Brampton, Ontario facility. The refinancing closed on February 27,
2024. The mortgage was refinanced with a $12,862,000 3-year fixed rate mortgage,
featuring a 25-year amortization period. Principal and interest will be paid monthly
at a fixed rate of 5.75% per annum. The Company received net proceeds of
approximately $2,100,000 following repayment of the refinanced mortgage and a

remaining vendor take back loan associated with a prior acquisition; and

on April 10, 2024, the Company announced a proposal to amend the terms of its
7.0% convertible unsecured subordinated debentures in the principal amount of
$17,250,000 due October 31, 2026. On April 30, 2024, the Company announced
that at a special meeting of the debenture holders, the debenture holders approved
an extraordinary resolution partially redeeming the debentures in exchange for
common shares, reducing the Company’s debt outstanding by approximately

$8,600,000 million, effective May 8, 2024.

20.  The Company has renegotiated certain of its debt obligations as required, while actively

seeking to consolidate its existing debts, and secure new debt or equity funding. This

process has not resulted in a viable debt consolidation or sufficient levels of new funding

to address the ongoing liquidity concerns.
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24,
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26.

27.

2

In July 2023, the Company engaged William Blair & Company (“William Blair”), a
boutique investment bank and financial services company, to assist in exploring a range of
strategic alternatives. With the assistance of William Blair, the Company undertook a
comprehensive marketing process to seek additional investment in or a sale of the
Company or its various business units. While this process has identified some credible
interest in the Company, it has not resulted in a viable bid for any portion of the Company

or its assets at this time.

Despite its efforts, the Company, burdened by the significant interest expense of its debt
obligations, has continued to struggle to generate sufficient free cash flow to support its

working capital requirements, leading to increasingly constrained liquidity.

The Company has failed to pay certain of its debts when due. Approximately $6.5 million
of principal and accrued interest is overdue and immediately owing to Creditors as of the
date of this affidavit. The Company currently has approximately $946,000 of cash on hand.
The Company’s investors have advised they are not prepared to provide additional funding

at this time.

Given its limited remaining cash on hand, in recent weeks the Company, with the assistance
of Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc. (“A&M?”, in its capacity as proposed monitor, the
“Proposed Monitor”, and if appointed, in such capacity, the “Monitor™), also began

exploring DIP financing options from various third-party lendets.

Following careful consideration of available options and alternatives with the assistance of
its financial and legal advisors, the Company has determined that the best path to maximize
stakeholder value and preserve the Company as a going concern is to commence these
CCAA proceedings, obtain DIP financing, and seek to finalize the terms of a Transaction,

following the completion of the SISP.

The Company has secured a DIP term sheet (the “DIP Terms™), but does not require DIP
financing until after the Comeback Hearing and will seek approval of the DIP Terms

approval in the ARIO.

Accordingly, the Petitioners seek an Initial Order, providing for, among other relief:
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a stay of proceedings in respect of the Petitioners for an initial 10-day period (the

“Initial Stay Period”);

the granting of the following priority charges (collectively, the “Charges”) over
the Petitioners’ Property (as defined in the Initial Order), listed in order of priority:

(1) the Administration Charge (as defined below) up to a maximum amount

of $100,000; and

(i)  the Directors’ Charge (as defined below) up to a maximum amount of

$400,000; and

authorization for GDNP PubCo to act as the foreign representative in respect of the
within proceeding for the purpose of having this CCAA proceeding recognized and
approved in a jurisdiction outside of Canada, and authorizing GDNP PubCo to
apply for foreign recognition and approval of this CCAA proceeding, as necessary,
in any jurisdiction outside of Canada, including the US pursuant to chapter 15 of
title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”), 11 U.S.C. §§ 101-
1532.

28.  If the proposed Initial Order is granted, at the Comeback Hearing the Petitioners intend to

seek the ARIO, among other things:

(a)

(b)

(c)

extending the stay of proceedings beyond July 8, 2024, and granting other
customary Comeback Hearing relief under the CCAA;

increasing the maximum amounts secured by the Administration Charge (as

defined below) to $250,000; and

authorization to borrow under the DIP Terms and any priority charges as provided

for in the DIP Terms.

29.  In addition, at the Comeback Hearing (or shortly thereafter) the Petitioners also intend to

seek an order (the “SISP Approval Order”), among other things:
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(d)
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approving a sale and investment solicitation process (the “SISP”) and authorizing

the Petitioners to implement the SISP pursuant to its terms;

authorizing the engagement of a sales agent to assist with implementation of the

SISP;

authorizing and directing the Petitioners and the Monitor to perform their respective
obligations and do all things reasonably necessary to perform their obligations

under the SISP; and

declaring that the Monitor and its affiliates, partners, directors, employees, agents,
and controlling persons, shall have no liability with respect to any losses, claims,
damages or liabilities of any nature or kind to any person in connection with or as
a result of the SISP, except to the extent such losses, claims, damages or liabilities
result from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Monitor in performing

its obligations under the SISP, as determined by this Court.



C. Background of the Petitioners and the GDNP Business
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i.  Corporate Structure
30.  An organizational chart outlining the Company’s corporate structure is below:
good natured
Products Inc
(British
Columbia)
100%
goad natured Products Inc {(CAD) Ontario 100% good natured Products {US) Inc. {Delaware) ‘
100% 100% | so.00% | 99.99% [ 100% [100% | 1005 l100% | 100%
good
N good natured| | good natured
Estat:{w 1306187 BC | | good natured Products Packaging Canada LP good natured Products Industrial go:: :::'t:!d Pro:ucls Products go:;:::::d go:::::t;;ed
Holding Inc | | L/mited (GNPPC) Canada LP (GNPIC) {llinals) LLC Rjas' Ezt:ée F“":ﬂ'é‘g US| pirectLLe | | (TexasjLic
[Cntario) ...
0.01% 0.01%
90.99%
good
natured
Products
Packaging
Brampton
LP {GNPPB) 100%
0.01% good natured Products Packaging
Canada GP
good nalured Products Pacakging
Brampton GP
good natured Products Industrial
Canada GP
a. good natured Products Inc. (“GDNP PubCo”)
31.  GDNP PubCo is a public company incorporated under the laws of British Columbia, with
a head office located at 814 - 470 Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia (the
“Yancouver Head Office”).
32. GDNP PubCo’s common shares are traded on the TSXV under the symbol “GDNP” and

on the OTCQB Venture Market under the symbol “GDNPF”. The following table sets out
the high and low daily closing prices and the volumes of trading of the GDNP PubCo’s

common shares on the TSXV up until April 15, 2024 and for the prior financial year.
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Price Range

Month/year High ($) Low ($) Trading Volume
. Janmuary 2023 0.31 0.25 : 2,516,500
February 2023 0.27 0.24 1,188,500
March 2023 0.26 0.20 1,722,508
April 2023 0.25 0.23 | 864,700
May 2023 - 62 | 01 2,941,800
June2023 018 | 010 6,982,200
July 2023 e om 1,618,400
August 2023 0.14 0.08 3,459,000
September 2023 0.11 0.09 1,859,100
October 2023 e | e 1,555,400
November 2023 | 610 007 | 4,089,400
' December 2023 ” | 008 | 006 3,720,800
January 2024 | 0.12 o 0.07" 3;313,?00
February 2024 | 0.08 Y 3,625,600 |
March 2024 . | 007 | o006 | 1478100
April 1, 2024 ~ April 15, 2024 007 | o006 1,686,700 |

33.  GDNP PubCo’s TSXV common share price closed at $0.02 on June 21, 2024,

34.  GDNP PubCo has a 100% ownership interest in each of good natured Real Estate Holdings
(Ontario) Inc. (“GDNP RE ON™), 1306187 B.C. Ltd. (“130”), and good natured Products
(CAD) Inc. (“GDNP CAD”).

b. good natured Real Estate Holdings (Ontario) Inc. (“GDNP RE ON”)

35. GDNP RE ON is a company incorporated under the laws of Ontario, with a business
address at 5 Abacus Road, Brampton, Ontario. GDNP RE ON holds legal title to the

Company’s real property located in Brampton, Ontario.
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40.

41.

42.

43,

44,
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c. 1306187 B.C. Ltd. (“130”)

130 is a company incorporated under the laws of British Columbia, with a business address
at the Vancouver Head Office. 130 holds legal title to the Company’s real property located

in Ayr, Ontario.

d. good natured Products (CAD) Inc. (“GDNP CAD”)

GDNP CAD is a company incorporated under the laws of Ontario, with a business address

at the Vancouver Head Office.

GDNP CAD has a 100% ownership interest in each of good natured Products Packaging
Canada GP Inc. (“GDNP Canada GP”), good natured Products Packaging Brampton GP
Inc. (“GDNP Brampton GP”), and good natured Products Industrial Canada GP Inc.
(“GDNP Industrial GP”).

GDNP CAD has a 99.9% ownership interest in each of good natured Products Packaging
Canada LP (“GDNP Canada LP”), and good natured Products Industrial Canada LP
(“GDNP Industrial LP”).

GDNP CAD has a 100% ownership interest in good natured Products (US) Inc.
(“GDNP US”).

e. good natured Products Packaging Canada GP Inc. (“GDNP Canada GP”)

GDNP Canada GP is a company incorporated under the laws of Ontario, with a business

address at the Vancouver Head Office.
GDNP Canada GP has a 0.1% ownership interest in GDNP Canada LP.

f.  good natured Products Packaging Brampton GP Inc. (“GDNP Brampton GP”)
GDNP Brampton GP is a company incorporated under the laws of Ontario, with a business

address at the Vancouver Head Office.

GDNP Brampton GP has a 0.1% ownership interest in good natured Products Packaging
Brampton LP (“GDNP Brampton LP”).
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52.
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g. good natured Products Industrial Canada GP Inc. (“GDNP Industrial GP”)

GDNP Industiral GP is a company incorporated under the laws of Ontario, with a business

address at the Vancouver Head Office.
GDNP Industrial GP has a 0.1% ownership interest in GDNP Industrial LP.

h. good natured Products Packaging Canada LP (“GDNP Canada LP”)

GDNP Canada LP is a company incorporated under the laws of Ontario, with a business

address at the Vancouver Head Office.
GDNP Canada LP has a 99.9% ownership interest in GDNP Brampton LP.

i. good natured Products Packaging Brampton LP (“GDNP Brampton LP")

GDNP Brampton LP is a company incorporated under the laws of Ontario, with a business
address at the Vancouver Head Office. GDNP Brampton LP owns various personal

property used in connection with the Company’s manufacturing in Brampton, Ontario.

j. good natured Products Industrial Canada LP (“GDNP Industrial LP”)

GDNP Brampton LP is a company incorporated under the laws of Ontario, with a business
address at the Vancouver Head Office. GDNP Industrial LP owns various personal

property used in connection with the Company’s manufacturing in Ayr, Ontario.

k. good natured Products (US) Inc. (“GDNP US”)

GDNP US is company incorporated under the laws of Delaware.

GDNP US has a 100% ownership interest in each of good natured Products (Illinois), LLC
(“GDNP Illinois LLC”), good natured Products Real Estate U.S., LLC (“GDNP RE US
LLC”), good natured Products Packaging US LLC (“GDNP Packaging LLC”), good
natured Products Direct LLC (“GDNP Direct LLC”), and good natured Products (Texas)
LLC (“GDNP Texas LLC”).
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l. good natured Products (Illinois), LLC (“GDNP Illinois LLC”)

GDNP Illinois LLC is a company incorporated under the laws of Illinois. GDNP Illinois
LLC owns various personal property used in connection with the Company’s

manufacturing in Richmond, Illinois.

m. good natured Products Real Estate U.S., LLC (“GDNP RE US LLC”)

GDNP RE US LLC is a company incorporated under the laws of Illinois. GDNP RE US
LLC holds legal title to the Company’s real property located in Richmond, Illinois.

n. good natured Products Packaging US LLC (“GDNP Packaging LLC”)

GDNP Packaging LLC is a company incorporated under the laws of Delaware.

0. good natured Products Direct LLC (“GDNP Direct LLC”)

GDNP Direct LLC is a company incorporated under the laws of Delaware.

p- good natured Products (Texas) LLC (“GDNP Texas LLC”)

GDNP Texas LLC is a company incorporated under the laws of Texas. GDNP Texas LLC
owns various personal property used in connection with the Company’s manufacturing in

Houston, Texas.

Copies of the corporate profile reports or local equivalents of each of the Petitioners is

attached hereto as Exhibit A.

The GDNP Business

Manufactured locally in the Canada and the United States, the Company engineers and
distributes a diverse range of bio-based products across various sectors, including grocery,
restaurant, electronics, automotive, and pharmaceutical via both wholesale and direct

channels.

The Company’s customer base includes retailers, food producers, food packers, consumer
product companies, restaurants, packaging thermoforming manufacturers and other
industrial processors across three key market segments — national, regional, and small

business — all of which are supported by a combination of inside and outside sales teams.
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61.  The Company also offers direct purchasing through its own e-commerce platform in

Canada and the U.S., well as through Amazon and other 3rd party channels. The vast

majority of the Company’s operations are performed within Canada and the U.S.

62.  The Company currently offers over 400 products and services across five key business

groups as follows:

(2)

(b)

(©

(d)

()
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Packaging:

1) Stock Packaging — over 90 bakery, deli and produce food packaging designs

available to customers through direct sales, distribution and ecommerce.

(i)  Custom Packaging — custom designed packaging for food, general
merchandise and medical supplies that meet specific customer requirements
and are delivered through exclusive and/or multi-year purchasing

agreements.

(iii)  Food Services — a variety of containers, cups, bowls and cutlery to meet the

needs of takeout and delivery food establishments.

General Merchandise — everyday home/business organization and commercial
products with high purchase frequency and a focus on removing chemicals of

concern in kitchens and food supplies.

Industrial — complementary eco-friendly inputs to the retail, restaurant, medical and
manufacturing industries, including extruded sheets, flaked products and

biodegradable agents.

Commercial & Business Supplies — a variety of commercial products that can be

cross-sold as complementary products to customers, such as pallet stretch wrap.

Services — supplemental service offerings, such as design, prototyping, labelling

and mold financing to support customer requirements.
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63.  The following table provides the Company’s percentages of revenue by business group and

geographic region, along with customer concentration, for the most recent audited financial

year:
Business Group Percentage of revenue, year ended
December 31, 2023
Packaging 49%
General Merchandise 2%
Industrial 47%
Commercial & Business Supplies <1%
Services 2%
Sales to U.S. customers 87%
Sales to Canadian customers 13%
Sales Concentration of top 4 customers 33%

64. The Company operates four manufacturing facilities. These facilities are located in
Brampton, Ontario; Ayr, Ontario; Richmond, Illinois; and Houston, Texas. The Brampton,
Ayr, and Richmond facilities are owned by the Company. The Houston facility is leased.
The Company also sources products from seven outsourced manufacturing facilities

located across Canada and the U.S.

65.  Product research and development is a key aspect of the Company’s business. Biomass
used for bioplastics and biodegradables stems from renewable inputs such as corn,
sugarcane, cellulose, or other plants with high starch levels. Product development requires
a continued investment in building engineering capabilities and specialized expertise in
matters such as assortment planning, research and development, testing, trials, designing,

material development and processing. If the Company were to cease investing sufficiently
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in product development, its products could become less attractive to potential customers
and/or misaligned with market demand, which could have a material adverse effect on the

results of operations and financial condition of the Company.

Development of the Company’s products requires specialized skills in the areas of product
development, engineering, manufacturing, sourcing and supply chain. The Company has
obtained personnel with the required specialized skills and established relationships with

supply chain partners to carry out its operations.

a. Suppliers and Vendors

The Company engineering team looks globally to source ingredients that are combined to
meet specific performance characteristics and commercial requirements using the

maximum possible annually renewable materials.

The Company also sources ingredients from bio-refinery companies. This is typically done
through direct or distributor supplier agreements by which the Company sources plant-
based materials, then either converts those materials or customizes them to create products,
packaging, industrial inputs and commercial supplies for specific customers and/or as a

key ingredient in its own branded products and packaging.

Using its outsourced supply chain partners along with its own production facilities provides
the Company flexibility in developing and sourcing products, packaging and materials.
Pricing for plant-based raw materials is set at market by suppliers with notice of price
changes at least 30 days in advance. The Company is not committed to purchase minimums
through long-term contracts. Instead, it works collaboratively with key suppliers by
comparing near-term purchase forecasts to raw material availability to ensure a secure level

of supply.

b. Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries currently employ an aggregate of 143 employees. The
Company’s employee headcount has decreased from a count of 226 employees in 2022.

The Company also employs consultants on an as-needed basis.
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Approximate weekly payroll is:
(a) $119,191 for the Company’s Canadian operations; and
(b)  US $74,488 for the Company’s US operations.

The Company provides a comprehensive extended benefit plan for all Canadian employees
through Sun Life Financial, including extended healthcare, life insurance, dental, and

accident and disability benefits.

The Company also provides a comprehensive extended benefit plan for all US employees,
including education assistance, life insurance, health savings account, and disability

benefits.

D. Financial Position

i

74.

75.

76.

ii.

77.

Financial Statements

The Company prepares financial statements that report the financial position of GDNP

PubCo (and its respective direct and indirect subsidiaries) on a consolidated basis.

The Company’s fiscal year end is December 31. A copy of GDNP PubCo’s audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, are attached hereto as

Exhibit B.

A copy of GDNP PubCo’s most recent unaudited consolidated financial statements for the

month ended March 31, 2024, are attached hereto as Exhibit C.

Assets

As at March 31, 2024, GDNP PubCo’s consolidated assets had an unaudited book value of
approximately $91,566,000, consisting of the following:
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Assets
Cutrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,316
Trade and other receivabies 7,508
inventory 11,557
Prepaid expenses 789
24,170
Non-current assets.
Propetty and equipment 44,784
Right-of-use assets 8,274
Customer relationships 1,558
intangible and other assets 4,329
Goodwill 8,451

iii.  Liabilities
78. As at March 31, 2024, GDNP PubCo’s consolidated liabilities had an unaudited book value
of approximately $85,711,000, consisting of the following:

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 20,620
Contingent consideration fability 2,218
Current portion of jong-term debt 5913
28,752
Non-Ceurrent liabilites:
Credit Facility 11,034
Convertible debentuses 15,553
Morigages 22 473
Lease Liability 5,004
Other long-term debt 2,430
Deferred income tax Habilities 465
56,958

79.  As further described above, the Company’s convertible debenture liabilities were reduced
as of April 30, 2024.

iv.  Secured Debt Obligations

80.  The Company’s current secured debt obligations are summarized below.

a. Wells Fargo Credit Facility

81.  GDNP PubCo is party to and borrower under a credit agreement dated August 25, 2022
(the “Wells Fargo Facility”) with Wells Fargo Capital Finance Corporation Canada
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(“Wells Fargo”) as lender. All of the Petitioners (other than GDNP PubCo) are parties to
the Wells Fargo Facility as guarantors (collectively, the “Wells Fargo Guarantors”).
GDNP PubCo, Wells Fargo, and the Wells Fargo Guarantors have executed eight

amending agreements to the Wells Fargo Facility.
82.  The security granted pursuant to the Wells Fargo Facility includes:

(a) the accounts, books, chattel paper, deposit accounts, equipment, goods, fixtures,
intangibles, inventory, investment property, intellectual property and intellectual
property licenses, negotiable collateral, pledged interests, securities and futures
accounts, supporting obligations, cash or cash equivalents, and proceeds therefrom
of GDNP PubCo and each of the Wells Fargo Guarantors organized under the laws

of Canadian provinces; and

(b)  the accounts, books, chattel paper, commercial tort claims, deposit accounts,
equipment, farm products, fixtures, general intangibles, inventory, investment
property, intellectual property and intellectual property licenses, negotiable
collateral, pledged interests, securities and futures accounts, supporting obligations
cash or cash equivalents, and proceeds therefrom of each of the Wells Fargo

Guarantors organized under the laws of US states.

83. Security under the Wells Fargo Facility does not extend to certain assets, including
consumer goods and owned real property. The Wells Fargo Facility is subject to the

Intercreditor Agreement (as defined below).

84.  Pursuant to the Wells Fargo Facility, the revolving loan availability is subject to limitations
under a borrowing base calculation. GDNP PubCo must pay down portions of the Wells
Fargo Facility if its borrowing base drops below certain thresholds (such payments, the
“Borrowing Base Payments”). The Borrowing Base Payments are calculated on a weekly
basis. The most recent Borrowing Base Payment requested by Wells Fargo for the week of
June 24, 2024, was US $330,000. GDNP PubCo paid this US $330,000 Borrowing Base
Payment on June 27, 2024.
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The current amount of outstanding principal and interest drawn under the Wells Fargo
Facility is approximately US $7,190,765 (after payment of the most recent $US $330,000

Borrowing Base Payment).

Pursuant to the Wells Fargo Facility, GDNP PubCo also has quarterly financial
performance targets. GDNP PubCo has requested that Well Fargo waive GDNP PubCo’s
EBITDA target for Q2 2024. Wells Fargo has requested that GDNP PubCo execute a ninth
amending agreement to the Wells Fargo Facility to waive the EBITDA target. This
amendment would grant Wells Fargo various relief, including a daily cash dominion over
the Company’s collection accounts. Wells Fargo informed GDNP PubCo on June 27, 2024,

that it would be instituting cash dominion in the coming days.

b. HSBC Equipment Lease

GDNP Industrial LP is party to and lessee under a master equipment lease dated September
6, 2023 (the “HSBC Equipment Lease”) with HSBC Bank Canada (“HSBC”) as lessor.
The HSBC Equipment Lease is guaranteed by GDNP PubCo. The HSBC Equipment Lease

is secured against all equipment supplied under the HSBC Equipment Lease.

As of March 31, 2024, the outstanding principal under the HSBC Equipment Lease was
approximately US $1,069,992. The HSBC Equipment Lease is repaid in monthly
installments of principal plus interest totalling US $25,480.77, until maturity on January
14, 2028.

c. EDC Tooling Credit Facility

GDNP PubCo is party to and borrower under a credit facility agreement dated February
22, 2022 (the “EDC Facility”) with Export Development Canada (“EDC”) as lender. The
EDC Facility is guaranteed by GDNP Brampton LP, GDNP CAD, and GDNP Industrial
LP (Collectively, the “EDC Facility Guarantors”).

The EDC Facility is secured against all present and future personal and moveable property
of GDNP PubCo and the EDC Facility Guarantors, subject to certain permitted liens and

the Intercreditor Agreement (as defined below).
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As of March 31, 2024, the outstanding principal under the EDC Facility was approximately
US $1,280,779. The EDC Facility is repaid in variable monthly installments of principal

plus interest over 42 months, beginning in October of 2022.

On April 25, 2024, GDNP PubCo, the EDC Facility Guarantors, and EDC executed an
amendment to the EDC Facility, deferring all repayment installments due under the EDC
Facility between May 10, 2024 and November 10, 2024.

d. Wingspire Leases

GDNP Illinois LLC is party to and lessee under a master lease agreement dated September
20, 2022 (the “Wingspire Master Lease”) with Wingspire Equipment Finance LLC
(“Wingspire”) as lessor. GDNP US and GDNP CAD are guarantors to the Wingspire

Master Lease.

GDNP Illinois LLC and Wingspire have entered two lease agreement schedules under the

Wingspire Master Lease.

The first schedule under the Wingspire Master Lease (the “First Wingspire Lease”) is
secured against all equipment supplied under the First Wingspire Lease. As of March 31,
2024, the outstanding principal under the First Wingspire Lease was approximately US
$2,643,720. The First Wingspire Lease is currently repaid in monthly installments of
principal plus interest totalling approximately US $88,389.

The second schedule under the Wingspire Master Lease (the “Second Wingspire Lease™)
is secured against all equipment supplied under the Second Wingspire Lease. As of March
31, 2024, the outstanding principal under the Second Wingspire Lease was approximately
US $1,190,000. The Second Wingspire Lease is currently repaid in monthly installments
of principal plus interest totalling approximately US $30,890.

The Second Wingspire Lease is backed by a letter of credit issued by HSBC in the
maximum amount of US $893,452.57 (the “Wingspire LC”).

LEGAL_1 86986334.5



98.

99.

100.

101.

102.

-P3 =

e. Mortgages
The Company, through 130, GDNP RE ON, and GDNP RE US LLC, owns a portfolio of

three properties used in connection with the Company’s business operations as

manufacturing facilities.
The Company properties are subject to the following mortgages;

(a) 130 is borrower under a $6,500,000 principal mortgage to HSBC against a property
located in Ayr, Ontario, guaranteed by GDNP PubCo, GDNP CAD, and GDNP
Industrial LP (the “HSBC Mortgage”);

(b)  GDNP RE ON is borrower under a $12,862,000 principal mortgage to The Toronto-
Dominion Bank (“TD Bank”) against a property located in Brampton, Ontario,
guaranteed by GDNP Brampton LP, and GDNP PubCo (the “TD Mortgage”); and

(c) GDNP RE US LLC is borrower under a US $2,765,750 principal mortgage to
American Community Bank & Trust against a property located in Richmond,
Illinois, guaranteed by GDNP Illinois LLC.

Based on appraisals completed between March 10, 2021, and November 30, 2023, the
approximate aggregate value of the Company’s real estate portfolio is $31,791,000. As of
March 31, 2024, the aggregate debt outstanding under the mortgages registered on title was
approximately $22,785,000.

J- Intercreditor Agreement

Wells Fargo, TD Bank, EDC, HSBC (only in its capacity as lender to the HSBC Mortgage),
and each of the Petitioners are party to a third amended and restated intercreditor agreement

dated February 22, 2024 (the “Intercreditor Agreement”).
Pursuant to the terms of the Intercreditor Agreement, inter alia:

(a) priority on security granted under the Wells Fargo Facility shall rank, in descending
order, to Wells Fargo to the extent of the Wells Fargo Facility obligations, EDC to
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the extent of the EDC Facility obligations, TD Bank to the extent of the TD
Mortgage obligations, and HSBC to the extent of the HSBC Mortgage obligations;

(b)  priority on security granted under the TD Mortgage (the “TD Mortgage Security”)
shall rank, in descending order, to TD Bank to the extent of the TD Mortgage
obligations, Wells Fargo to the extent of the Wells Fargo Facility obligations, and
HSBC to the extent of the HSBC Mortgage obligations;

(©) priority on security granted under the HSBC Mortgage (the “HSBC Mortgage
Security”) shall rank, in descending order, to HSBC to the extent of the HSBC
Mortgage obligations, and Wells Fargo to the extent of the Wells Fargo Facility

obligations; and

(d) EDC has no encumbrance on the TD Mortgage Security or the HSBC Mortgage

Security.

Unsecured Debt Obligations

The Company’s current unsecured debt obligations are summarized below.

a. Convertible Debentures

GDNP PubCo has unsecured convertible debentures with a principal amount of
$1,315,000, at 10% annual interest, payable bi-annually (the “2019 Debentures”). The
2019 Debentures mature in two stages: $540,000 matures on December 30, 2024, and the

remaining $775,000 matures on January 23, 2025.

GDNP PubCo also has unsecured convertible debentures with a principal amount of
$8,625,000, at 10% interest, payable annually, beginning in December 2024 (the “2021
Debentures”). The 2021 Debentures mature on December 15, 2029.

b. Trade Creditors

The Company purchases goods and services in the normal course of business to facilitate
the production of goods and delivery of services, and for administration of the Company.
Payment terms are typically 120 days for materials, 105 days for fulfillment, 105 days for

maintenance and repairs, 105 days for capital expenditures, 100 days for outsource
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services, 90 days for supplies, 60 days for insurance, 60 days for corporate services, and

30 days for utilities.

Currently, the Company has approximately $5,963,766 past due to various trade creditors.
Approximately $800,000 will become due to trade creditors in the next 15 days.

The Company’s trade credit to its supplier, Ravago Americas LLC, is backed by a letter of
credit issued by HSBC in the maximum amount of US $3,000,000 (the “Ravago LC”).

c. Government Loans

GDNP PubCo and GDNP CAD are party to and borrowers under two unsecured loans from
Pacific Economic Development Canada pursuant to a government Western Innovation

Initiative Loan program (the “WINN Loans”).

As of March 31, 2024, the current amounts outstanding under the WINN Loans were
$275,726, and $632,255 respectively. The WINN Loans are currently repaid in monthly
installments of $18,383 and $18,063 respectively. Recently, the Company has made

requests to defer payments on the WINN Loans; however, these requests were denied.

d. Vendor Take Back Notes

GDNP CAD is party to and borrower under two unsecured subordinated promissory notes
issued to Bill Mechar and JTF Holdings Inc. respectively (the “VTB Notes”). The VIB
Notes were issued as vendor take back loans pursuant to a Company acquisition in

December of 2020. The VTB Notes are guaranteed by GDNP PubCo.

As of March 31, 2024, the amount of principal outstanding under the VIB Notes was
approximately $1,762,366. The VTB Notes are currently repaid in monthly installments of
$40,054 ($20,027 per note), plus interest quarterly at 5.75% per annum, until maturity on
August 31, 2027. Recently, the Company stopped making payments on the VIB Notes.

e. Reverse Earnout

GDNP PubCo is party to and purchaser under a share purchase agreement dated March 2,
2020 (the “Shepherd SPA™), with Todd Shepherd, Mark Shepherd, Shepherd Family
Trust, Barry Shepherd and Denise Shepherd, as vendors (collectively, the “Shepherd
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Vendors”™). Pursuant to the Shepherd SPA, GDNP PubCo was obligated to make a reverse
earnout payment totalling $2,250,000 to certain of the Shepherd Vendors as of May 10,
2024 (the “Reverse Earnout Payment”).

GDNP PubCo failed to make the Reverse Earnout Payment. Pursuant to the Shepherd SPA,
the outstanding payment accrues interest at prime plus 2% per annum, calculated and
compounded monthly, until such time as the Reverse Earnout Payment is paid in full. The

Reverse Earnout Payment is unsecured.

Letters of Credit
a. HSBC Letters of Credit

GDNP PubCo is party to and borrower under an amended facility letter dated October 3,
2023, (the “HSBC LC Facility”) with HSBC as borrower. Pursuant to the HSBC LC
Facility, GDNP PubCo may request, and HSBC may issue, letters of credit to support the
day to day operations of the Company. Currently, the only active letters of credit issued
pursuant to the HSBC LC Facility are the Wingspire LC and the Ravago LC. These letters

of credit have never been drawn upon.

The HSBC LC Facility is unsecured. The HSBC LC is backed by the EDC Indemnity (as
defined below).

b. EDC Letter of Credit Indemnity

In October 2020, GDNP PubCo and EDC entered a guarantee and indemnity agreement
(the “EDC Indemnity”). Pursuant to the EDC Indemnity and its affiliated agreements,
EDC agreed to back certain letters of credit issued in favour of the Company by HSBC, in
exchange for GDNP PubCo’s promise to indemnify EDC.

The EDC Indemnity is guaranteed by GDNP CAD, GDNP US, and GDNP RE ON. The

EDC Indemnity is unsecured.

The EDC Indemnity backs the Wingspire LC and the Ravago LC. To date, the EDC

Indemnity has not been drawn upon.
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Owned Real Property
As described above, the Company, through 130, GDNP RE ON, and GDNP RE US LLC,

owns three commercial properties in Ayr, Ontario, Brampton, Ontario, and Richmond

Illinois, respectively. All three properties are leased to inter-company entities.

As described above, the aggregate net equity in the Company’s owned real property is

estimated at approximately $9,006,000.

Leased Real Property

The Company occupies three commercial properties leased from third party landlords in
Canada and the United States. The Company’s lease obligations to third party landlords for
the 2024 fiscal year are anticipated to be approximately $1,100,000.

The Company is current on its rent obligations, except for a leased commercial building in
Cambridge, Ontario. The property is vacant and the Company is in discussions with its
landlord to surrender or sublease the premises. The Company is also late on its rent

obligations for its warehouse building in Genoa City, Washington.

Cash Management

Each of the Petitioners has its own bank accounts; however, the Company uses a
centralized cash and treasury management process for banking, cash planning, and
payment approvals. All of the Company’s cash is overseen by GDNP PubCo. Under the
guidance of GDNP PubCo, the Company moves cash amongst its subsidiaries on a weekly
basis to fund accounts payable and payroll (collectively, the “Cash Management
System™). All of the Company’s bank accounts are with HSBC.

The current Cash Management System includes the necessary accounting controls to
enable the Petitioners and the Monitor to trace funds and ensure that all transactions are

adequately ascertainable.

In addition, the Company uses a limited number of credit cards to facilitate operational
corporate payments in Canada and the US (the “Credit Cards™). As of June 21, 2024, the

balances on the Credit Cards were current other than charges incurred during the current
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billing period. The Petitioners are seeking authority pursuant to the proposed Initial Order
to continue to use the Credit Cards, and make full repayment of all amounts outstanding

thereunder.

Intercompany Transfers

In the ordinary course of business, certain of the Petitioners engage in intercompany
transactions. In addition to the cash transfers described above, intercompany transactions
include payments from one Company entity to another for products and/or services, which

are then sold to third party customers.

As described above, the properties owned by 130, GDNP RE ON, and GDNP RE US LLC
are all leased to inter-company entities. The rent from those lease payments is primarily

used to pay the corresponding mortgage obligations.

E. Pre-Filing Sale Process

129.

130.

In July 2023, the Company engaged William Blair, a boutique investment bank and
financial services company, to assist in exploring a range of strategic alternatives. With the
assistance of William Blair, the Company undertook a comprehensive marketing process
to seek an additional investment in, or a sale of, the Company or its various business units
(the “Pre-Filing Sale Process”). The Company has yet to receive any formal offers
through the Pre-Filing Sale Process; however, several companies and private equity firms

have expressed credible interest.

Unfortunately, the liquidity challenges discussed above have limited the Company’s ability
to continue exploring marketing options outside of a formal insolvency process. As such,
the Company seeks the benefit of CCAA protection, while viable options to sell or
restructure are pursued through the SISP, in order to maximize value for the benefit of the

Company’s stakeholders.

F. Relief Sought at the Initial Hearing

131.

The Petitioners will be seeking various forms of relief upon commencing these CCAA

proceedings, including the following relief described below.
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i The Petitioners are Insolvent

132.  The Company has limited remaining liquidity to operate its business. Absent obtaining
additional financing in the near term, the Company will be unable to meet its obligations

as they fall due in the normal course.

133.  As described above, the Company has approximately $6.5 million overdue and
immediately owing to its creditors, and approximately $946,000 in available cash. The
Company expects continued negative weekly cash flows as outlined in the Cash Flow
Forecast (as defined below). These liquidity concerns are amplified by the increasing
pressure from Borrowing Base Payments under the Wells Fargo Facility, and Wells Fargo’s

demand that the Company provide cash dominion over its collection accounts.

ii.  Stay of Proceedings

134. The Petitioners require a broad stay of proceedings to prevent, among other things, the
exercise of remedies by contractual counterparties and creditors. The stay of proceedings
is intended to stabilize and preserve the value of the integrated GDNP Business.
Additionally, the stay of proceedings will provide the Petitioners the necessary time to
finalize and complete a Transaction for a sale of the GDNP Business (following the
conduct of the SISP by the Petitioners, with the assistance and under the oversight of the
Monitor). At the initial hearing of the Petition, the Petitioners will seek a stay of

proceedings of not more than 10 days, consistent with the CCAA.

iii.  Cash Flow Forecast and DIP Financing

135. In consultation with the Proposed Monitor, the Petitioners have prepared a cash flow
forecast (the “Cash Flow Forecast”), which indicates that the Petitioners will require
access to additional funding during these proceedings. A copy of the Cash Flow Forecast
is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

136. The Petitioners’ principal use of cash during these CCAA proceedings will be the costs
associated with the ongoing operation of the GDNP Business including, among other
things, employee compensation, supplier payments, lease payments and general

administrative expenses. In addition to these normal course operating expenditures, the
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Petitioners will also incur professional fees and disbursements in connection with these
CCAA proceedings, including the SISP and the negotiation, approval and implementation

of a Transaction.

137. Interim financing is needed to provide stability and fund operations and restructuring
efforts, including these proceedings and the Transaction. To that end, in the lead-up to the
commencement of thess CCAA proceedings, the Company, in consultation with the
Proposed Monitor, solicited expressions of interest in providing DIP financing from

various third party lenders.

138.  As discussed above, the Company has secured the DIP Terms, but does not require DIP
financing until after the Comeback Hearing and will seek approval of the DIP Terms in the

ARIO.

iv.  Continued Use of the Cash Management System

139. The Petitioners are seeking the authority to continue to operate the Cash Management
System, as described above, to maintain the funding and banking arrangements already in
place for the Petitioners. The continued operation of the Cash Management System will
minimize disruption, avoid the need to negotiate and implement alternative banking

arrangements, and enable the Petitioners to continue operating in the normal course.

v.  Payments During the CCAA Proceedings

140.  During the course of the CCAA proceedings, the Company intends to make payments for
goods and services supplied to it post-filing in the ordinary course, as set out in the Cash

Flow Forecast and requested in the proposed Initial Order.

vi.  The Proposed Monitor

141.  The Petitioners seek the appointment of A&M as the Monitor of the Petitioners. A&M has
consented to act as the Monitor of the Petitioners, subject to approval from this Court. A

copy of A&M’s consent is attached hereto as Exhibit E.
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A&M is a licensed insolvency trustee within the meaning of section 2 of the Bankruptcy
and Insolvency Act, R.S.C. 1985, ¢. B-3, and is not subject to any of the restrictions on who

may be appointed as Monitor, as set out in subsection 11.7(2) of the CCAA.

An affiliate of A&M, Alvarez & Marsal Canada, became involved with the Petitioners in
March 2024, in anticipation that it would become necessary for the Petitioners to
commence these CCAA proceedings. A&M has assisted in reviewing the Cash Flow
Forecast and has participated in discussions regarding the Petitioners’ financial and
liquidity position, available options, and the relief requested by the Petitioners in

connection with these CCAA proceedings.

Administration Charge

In order to protect payment of the fees and expenses of the Proposed Monitor, counsel to
the Proposed Monitor, and counsel to the Petitioners, the Petitioners seek a charge in favour
of these professionals to secure payment of their reasonable fees and disbursements
incurred both prior to and after commencement of these CCAA proceedings (the
“Administration Charge”), initially in the amount of $100,000 to be increased to
$250,000 as set out in the proposed ARIO which will be sought at the Comeback Hearing.
It is requested that the Administration Charge have first priority against the Property (as
defined in the Initial Order).

Directors and Officers Indemnity Charge

The Petitioners are seeking customary provisions indemnifying the directors and officers
of the Petitioners (collectively, the “Directors and Officers”) against any obligations and
liabilities they may incur as a director or officer of the Petitioners after the commencement
of this CCAA proceeding (the “D&O Indemnity”), including those owing to employees

and government entities.

The Directors and Officers have expressed a desire for certainty with respect to their

potential personal liability if they continue in their current roles in the CCAA proceedings.
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147. The Petitioners require the active involvement of their Directors and Officers during the
CCAA proceedings, including with respect to the approval of the ultimate Transaction

entered into by the Company and any related tax structured transactions.

148. The Directors and Officers have indicated that their continued service and involvement in
the CCAA proceedings is conditional upon the granting a Court-ordered charge (the
“Directors’ Charge”) on the Property (as defined in the Initial Order) in the amount of
$400,000 to secure the D&O Indemnity. The proposed Directors’ Charge would rank
second in priority, in accordance with the priority set out in the proposed Initial Order,
behind the Administration Charge, but ahead of all other charges against the Property (as
defined in the Initial Order).

149. The quantum of the Directors’ Charge is necessary to protect the Directors and Officers in
the Initial Stay Period, having regard to the potential personal liabilities that they may be
exposed to in respect of the Petitioners obligations in the period before the Comeback

Hearing.

150. The Petitioners believe that the Directors’ Charge is reasonable in the circumstances. The
Proposed Monitor is supportive of the Directors’ Charge and its quantum (both the initial
quantum and the increased amount). The amount of the Directors’ Charge has been
calculated with the assistance of A&M based on the estimated potential exposure of the

Directors and Officers.

ix.  Priorities of Charges

151. It is contemplated that the priorities of the Charges granted pursuant to the Initial Order, as

among them, will be as follows:
(a) Administration Charge: up to a maximum of $100,000; and
(b)  Directors’ Charge: up to a maximum of $400,000.

152.  The proposed Initial Order provides for the Charges to rank in priority to all other security

interests, trusts, liens, charges, encumbrances and claims of secured creditors, statutory or
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otherwise, in favour of any person, save and except those claims contemplated by section

11.8(8) of the CCAA.

x.  Chapter 15 Cases

153. Because the Company has operations, assets and valuable business and trade relationships
with a number of parties in the US, the Company intends to initiate cases under chapter 15
of the Bankruptcy Code seeking an order to recognize and enforce the CCAA orders in the
US and protect against any potential adverse action taken by US-based parties (the
“Chapter 15 Cases™).

154. While the Company has offices and operations in both Canada and the United States, its
centre of main interest is in Canada. The Company's operations are functionally and
operationally integrated such that the US business cannot operate independently of the
Canadian business and the key services provided by GDNP PubCo for the benefit of the
entire Company. The Company's executive level decision making is directed from its head
office located in Vancouver, British Columbia, and all of the Petitioners report to the

Company's Chief Executive Officer in the Vancouver Head Office.
155. Functional integration between the Company’s Canadian and US entities includes that:

(a) GDNP PubCo provides certain centralized operational and administrative functions
for the Company as a whole. These functions are performed by Canadian
employees and include, among other things (i) oversight of the corporate finance,

tax and audit functions, and (ii) maintaining certain insurance policies;

(b) the Company’s Canadian executives, who work from the Company’s head office
in Vancouver, British Columbia, have ultimate oversight over the bank accounts of

all of the Petitioners; and

(c) GDNP PubCo is the borrower under the Company’s primary revolving debt facility
(which is guaranteed by each of the Petitioners, including all of the US entities).
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G. Relief to be Sought at the Comeback Hearing

156. If the proposed Initial Order is granted, the Petitioners intend to seek the ARIO and the
SISP Approval Order at the Comeback Hearing (or seek the SISP Approval Order shortly
thereafter). The relief contemplated by each of the proposed ARIO and SISP Approval

Order is described below.

i. ARIO
a. Stay Extension

157.  The proposed Initial Order seeks the granting of a CCAA stay of proceedings for the Initial
Stay Period until July 8, 2024. At the Comeback Hearing, the Petitioners intend to seek an
extension of the stay of proceedings. The proposed extension of the stay of proceedings
will enable the Petitioners continue to operate the business, and close a Transaction

following completion of the SISP.

b. Increase to Administration Charge

158.  The charges proposed in the Initial Order are intended for the Initial Stay Period only. The
proposed ARIO will provide for the following amendments to the Charges, listed in order
of priority:

(a) Administration Charge: increase to a maximum of $250,000; and
(b)  Directors’ Charge: to remain at a maximum of $400,000.

159.  The Petitioners believe the amounts of the proposed Charges (both in the Initial Order and
the ARIO) are fair and reasonable in the circumstances. I understand that the Proposed
Monitor is also supportive of the amounts of the proposed Charges, as increased and/or

granted pursuant to the proposed ARIO.

ii. DIPLoan

160. In the ARIO, the Petitioners will also seek authorization to borrow under the DIP Terms

and any priority charges as provided for in the DIP Terms.
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iii.  SISP Approval Order

161. As discussed above, the Company, with the assistance of its advisors, worked throughout
July 2023 to present, to identify a strategic transaction that would have avoided the need
for a formal CCAA restructuring. The Pre-Filing Sale Process did not identify any
actionable bids generating proceeds sufficient to satisfy the Company’s debt obligations,
and a continuation of that process is restricted by the Company’s current liquidity
challenges. As such, in order to pursue a transaction for the benefit of its stakeholders, the
Petitioners intend to seek the SISP Approval Order at the Comeback Hearing (or shortly
thereafter):

(a) approving the SISP, and authorizing A&M as Monitor to implement the SISP

pursuant to the terms thereof;

(b) authorizing and directing the Petitioners and the Monitor to perform their respective

obligations and do all things reasonably necessary to perform same under the SISP;

© declaring that the Petitioners and the Monitor, and their respective affiliates,
partners, directors, officers, employees, legal advisors, representatives, agents, and
controlling persons shall have no liability with respect to any losses, claims,
damages or liabilities of any nature or kind to any person in connection with or as
a result of the SISP, except to the extent such claims result from the gross
negligence or wilful misconduct of the Petitioners or the Monitor, as applicable, in
performing their obligations under the SISP, as determined by the Court in a final

order that is not subject to appeal or other review; and

(d) granting the Monitor, in connection with its role in conducting the SISP, all of the
benefits and protections granted to it under the CCAA, the ARIO and any other
order of the Court in this CCAA proceeding.

H. Conclusion

162. The Petitioners, with the assistance of their advisors, have reviewed and considered the
potential options and alternatives available to them in the circumstances, taking into

account, among other things, their limited remaining liquidity and current inability to repay
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their indebtedness. The Petitioners have determined that it is in their best interests and those

of their stakeholders to commence these CCAA proceedings.

163. The Petitioners believe that the relief sought pursuant to the proposed Initial Order is
appropriate and necessary in the circumstances, and respectfully request that the Court
grant the proposed Initial Order. If the Initial Order is granted, the Petitioners also
respectfully submit that the relief sought in the proposed ARIO and SISP Approval Order
is appropriate and in the best interests of the Petitioners, and that such orders be granted at

the Comeback Hearing.

AFFIRMED BEFORE ME at Vancouver,
British Columbia, on June 27, 2024.

)
)

. )
(ot )
)

)

)

)

A Commissioner for tak\ﬁg affidavits for
British Columbia

PAUL ANTONIADIS

TIAN GARTON
C&%LSST}SR & SOLICITOR

: LP
in & Harcourt L
Oslers s%&:s l!:35{."‘30. Bentall Four
1065 Dunsmuir Slrﬂ?t

uver, BC
TEL%OHONE: 804.,492.2719

LEGAL_1:86986334.5



SCHEDULE A

Canadian Petitioners

2 good natured Real Estate Holdings (Ontario) Inc.
gt 1306187 B.C. Ltd.

4. good natured Products (CAD) Inc.

5. good natured Products Packaging Canada GP Inc.
6. good natured Products Packaging Brampton GP Inc.
7. good natured Products Industrial Canada GP Inc.
8. good natured Products Packaging Canada LP

9. good natured Products Packaging Brampton LP
10.  good natured Products Industrial Canada LP

US Petitioners

11.  good natured Products (US) Inc.

12. good natured Products (Illinois), LLC

13.  good natured Products Real Estate U.S., LLC

14.  good natured Products Packaging US LLC

15.  good natured Products Direct LLC

16. good natured Products (Texas) LLC

good natured Products Inc.

LEGAL _1:86986334.5



This is Exhibit “A” referred to in the
Affidavit #1 of Paul Antoniadis affirmed
before me at Vancouver, BC,
this 27th day of June 2024

é&;\éz -

A Commissioner/Notary Public for the
Province of British Columbia



A . Mailing Address: Location:

o) B C Reglstf y PO Box 9431 Stn Prov Govt 2nd Floor - 940 Blanshard Street
BRITISH S b Victoria BC V8W 9V3 Victoria BC

COLUMBIA e-[ v lces www.corporateonline.gov.bc.ca 1 877 526-1526

BC Company Summary

For
GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Date and Time of Search: June 20, 2024 04:12 PM Pacific Time
Currency Date: March 27, 2024

ACTIVE
Incorporation Number: C1031657
Name of Company: GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.
Business Number: 805369782 BCO0O1

Recognition Date and Time: Continued into British Columbia on March 26, 2015 12:05 In Liquidation: No
PM Pacific Time

Last Annual Report Filed: March 26, 2024 Receiver: No

PREVIOUS FOREIGN JURISDICTION INFORMATION

Identifying Number in Foreign Jurisdiction: Name in Foreign Jurisdiction:
2018294823 Rodeo Capital 11l Corp.

Date of Incorporation, Continuation or Amalgamation  Foreign Jurisdiction:

in Foreign Jurisdiction:

March 26, 2015 ALBERTA

COMPANY NAME INFORMATION
Previous Company Name Date of Company Name Change
SOLEGEAR BIOPLASTIC TECHNOLOGIES INC. October 31, 2017

REGISTERED OFFICE INFORMATION

Mailing Address: Delivery Address:

SUITE 400 - 1681 CHESTNUT STREET SUITE 400 - 1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6 VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA CANADA

RECORDS OFFICE INFORMATION

Mailing Address: Delivery Address:

SUITE 400 - 1681 CHESTNUT STREET SUITE 400 - 1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6 VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA CANADA

C1031657 Page: 1 of 2



DIRECTOR INFORMATION

Last Name, First Name, Middle Name:
Antoniadis, Paul

Mailing Address:

SUITE 400-1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Last Name, First Name, Middle Name:

Kozikowski, Tamara ( formerly Kozikowski, Tami )

Mailing Address:

SUITE 400-1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Last Name, First Name, Middle Name:
Marsh, Joel

Mailing Address:

SUITE 400-1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Last Name, First Name, Middle Name:
Munford, Mark R.

Mailing Address:

SUITE 400 -1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Last Name, First Name, Middle Name:
Sanft, Karl

Mailing Address:

SUITE 400 -1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Last Name, First Name, Middle Name:
Spencer, Keith

Mailing Address:

SUITE 400-1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Delivery Address:

SUITE 400-1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC Vv6J 4M6

CANADA

Delivery Address:

SUITE 400-1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC Vv6J 4M6

CANADA

Delivery Address:

SUITE 400-1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Delivery Address:

SUITE 400 -1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Delivery Address:

SUITE 400 -1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Delivery Address:

SUITE 400-1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

NO OFFICER INFORMATION FILED AS AT March 26, 2024.

C1031657 Page: 2 of 2



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198348
Report Generated on june 26, 2024, 09:46

Ministry of Public and

o n ta ri o @ Business Service Delivery

Profile Report

GOOD NATURED REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS (ONTARIO) INC. as of June 26, 2024

Act Business Corporations Act

Type Ontario Business Corporation

Name GOOD NATURED REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS (ONTARIO) INC.

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN) 5032804

Governing jurisdiction Canada - Ontario

Status Active

Date of Amalgamation May 12, 2020

Registered or Head Office Address 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quimfonithe- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this repart is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded in the electronic records malntalned by the Ministry up to the "as of date Indlcated on the report.
Additional historical iInformatlon may exist In paper or microfiche format.

Page 1 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198348
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Active Director(s)

Minimum Number of Directors 1

Maximum Number of Directors 10

Name PAUL ANTONIADIS

Address for Service 470 Granwville St, 814, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 1V5,
Canada

Resident Canadian Yes

Date Began May 12, 2020

Name DON HOLMSTROM

Address for Service 470 Granville St., 814, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 1V5,
Canada

Resident Canadian Yes

Date Began May 12, 2020

Certified a true copy of the record of the Minlstry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quindonistho- W)
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent informatlon filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and Aprit 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fillngs
and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded In the electronlc records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indlcated on the report.
Additional historlcal information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
Page 2 of 8



Active Officer(s)
Name

Position

Address for Service

Date Began

Name
Position
Address for Service

Date Began

Name
Position
Address for Service

Date Began

Name
Position
Address for Service

Date Began

Name

Position

Address for Service
Date Began

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

Quimian

Director/Registrar

Transaction Number: APP-A10509198348
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

PAUL ANTONIADIS

Chief Executive Officer

470 Granville St, 814, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 1V5,
Canada

May 12, 2020

PAUL ANTONIADIS

President

470 Granville St, 814, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 1V5,
Canada

May 12, 2020

DON HOLMSTROM

Chief Financial Officer

470 Granville St., 814, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 1V5,
Canada

May 12, 2020

DON HOLMSTROM

Secretary

470 Granville St., 814, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 1V5,
Canada

May 12, 2020

MARK SHEPHERD

Vice-President

54 Durham Street, Georgetown, Ontario, L7G 5X4, Canada
May 12, 2020

This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and Aprit 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent informatlon filed and recorded in the electronic records malntalned by the Ministry up to the "as of" date indicated on the report.

Addltional historlcal information may exist In paper or microfiche format.

Page 3 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198348
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Corporate Name History
Name GOOD NATURED REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS (ONTARIO) INC.

Effective Date May 12, 2020

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Buslness Service Delivery.

V. Quwimfoniskho- W)
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronlc records malntalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded In the electronlc records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of date Indlcated on the report.

Additlonal historlcal Information may exlst In paper or microfiche format.
Page 4 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198348
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Amalgamating Corporations

Corporation Name BD SHEPCO HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ontario Corporation Number 1775161

Corporation Name GOOD NATURED REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS (ONTARIO) INC.
Ontario Corporation Number 2752669

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quisdonistbo- -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Minlstry up to the “as of" date indlcated on the report.
Additlonal historlcal Informatlon may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 5of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198348
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Active Business Names
This corporation does not have any active business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Publlc and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quinsonistbo W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporatlons and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronlc records maintained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.

Additional historical Information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
Page 6 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198348
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Expired or Cancelled Business Names
This corporation does not have any expired or cancelled business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonidbo W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information flled on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and Aprit 1, 1994 in respect of Buslness Names Act and Limlted Partnershlips Act filings
and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. if this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Minlstry up to the “as of" date Indicated on the report.

Additional historical Information may exlst in paper or microfiche format.
Page 7 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198348
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Document List
Filing Name Effective Date

Annual Return - 2024 May 13, 2024
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Notice of Change October 05, 2023
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

Annual Return - 2023 September 22, 2023
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

Annual Return - 2022 September 22, 2023
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Notice of Change July 11, 2023
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

Annual Return - 2021 April 21, 2022
PAF: Carly FERRIER

Annual Return - 2020 April 21, 2022
PAF: Carly FERRIER

CIA - Initial Return May 19, 2020
PAF: CARLY FERRIER - OTHER

BCA - Articles of Amalgamation May 12, 2020

All “PAF" (person authorizing filing) information is displayed exactly as recorded in the Ontario Business Registry. Where PAF is
not shown against a document, the information has not been recorded in the Ontario Business Registry.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quindanistle- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Informatlon flled on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
far a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indlcated on the report.
Additlonal historlcal information may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 8 of 8



M : Mailing Address: Location:
B » RengtI y PO Box 9431 Stn Prov Govt 2nd Floor - 940 Blanshard Street
BRITISH - Victoria BC V8W 9V3 Victoria BC
COLUMBIA Serv lces www.corporateonline.gov.bc.ca 1877 526-1526

BC Company Summary

For
1306187 B.C. LTD.

June 20, 2024 04:13 PM Pacific Time
March 27, 2024

Date and Time of Search:
Currency Date:

ACTIVE
Incorporation Number: BC1306187
Name of Company: 1306187 B.C. LTD.
Business Number: 799379102 BC0001
Recognition Date and Time: Incorporated on May 18, 2021 06:00 PM Pacific Time In Liquidation: No
Last Annual Report Filed: May 18, 2024 Receiver: No

REGISTERED OFFICE INFORMATION

Mailing Address:

SUITE 400 - 1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

RECORDS OFFICE INFORMATION

Mailing Address:

SUITE 400 - 1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

DIRECTOR INFORMATION

Last Name, First Name, Middle Name:
Antoniadis, Paul

Mailing Address:

814 - 470 GRANVILLE STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6C 1V5
CANADA

Delivery Address:

SUITE 400 - 1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOQUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Delivery Address:

SUITE 400 - 1681 CHESTNUT STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6J 4M6

CANADA

Delivery Address:

814 - 470 GRANVILLE STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6C 1V5
CANADA

BC1306187 Page: 1 of 2



Last Name, First Name, Middle Name:
Holmstrom, Don

Mailing Address:

814 - 470 GRANVILLE STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6C 1V5
CANADA

Delivery Address:

814 - 470 GRANVILLE STREET
VANCOUVER BC V6C 1V5
CANADA

NO OFFICER INFORMATION FILED AS AT May 18, 2024.

BC1306187 Page: 2 of 2



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199803
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Ministry of Public and

o n ta ri o @ Business Service Delivery

Profile Report

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS (CAD) INC. as of June 26, 2024

Act Business Corporations Act

Type Ontario Business Corporation

Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS (CAD) INC.

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN) 1000490599

Governing Jurisdiction Canada - Ontario

Status Active

Date of Amalgamation April 01, 2023

Registered or Head Office Address 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 174,
Canada

Certlfied a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quimfanistho- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronlc records malintalned by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.
Additional historical informatlon may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 1 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199803
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Director(s)
Minimum Number of Directors

Maximum Number of Directors 10

Name PAUL ANTONIADIS

Address for Service 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Resident Canadian Yes

Date Began April 01, 2023

Name DON HOLMSTROM

Address for Service 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Resident Canadian Yes \

Date Began April 01, 2023

Certified a true copy of the record of the Minlstry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quimfonitbo-W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information flled and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report.
Additlonal historlcal information may exist [n paper or microfiche format.

Page 2 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199803
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Officer(s)

Name PAUL ANTONIADIS

Position Chief Executive Officer

Address for Service 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Date Began April 01, 2023

Name DON HOLMSTROM

Position Chief Financial Officer

Address for Service 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Date Began April 01, 2023

Certified a true copy of the record of the Minlstry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

Director/Registrar

This report sets out the most recent Information flled on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of carporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded in the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report.
Additional historical information may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 3 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199803
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Corporate Name History
Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS (CAD) INC.

Effective Date April 01, 2023

Certlfled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quinlonikho- W)
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronlc records maintalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report is generated for a prevlous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the "as of" date Indicated on the report.

Additional historlcal Information may exIst in paper or microfiche format.
Page 4 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199803
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Amalgamating Corporations

Corporation Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS (CAD) INC.

Ontario Corporation Number 1000397437

Corporation Name SHEPHERD THERMOFORMING & PACKAGING INC.
Ontario Corporation Number 5032803

Corporation Name INTEGRATED PACKAGING FILMS GP INC.

Ontario Corporation Number 2796490

Corporation Name IPF HOLDINGS INC.

Ontario Corporation Number 2406866

Corporation Name MECHAR AMCO LTD.

Ontario Corporation Number 2407443

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quisdonistle-W)
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded in the electronlc records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent informatlon filed and recorded in the electronic records malintained by the Minlstry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.
Additional historical Informatlon may exIst In paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509199803
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Business Names
This corporation does not have any active business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonisdhs- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Informatlon filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information flled and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Minlstry up to the “as of* date Indicated on the report.

Addltlonal historlcal information may exist tn paper or microfiche format.
Page 6 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199803
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Expired or Cancelled Business Names
This corporation does not have any expired or cancelled business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Mlnistry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonitbo- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporatlons and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records malntalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a prevlous date, the report sets out the most recent infarmation filed and recorded in the electronlc records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report.

Additional historical Information may exist in paper or microflche format.
Page 7 of 8



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199803
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Document List

Filing Name Effective Date
ClA - Notice of Change March 04, 2024
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Notice of Change October 05, 2023
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Notice of Change July 11, 2023
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Initial Return June 05, 2023
PAF: CARLY FERRIER

BCA - Articles of Amalgamation April 01, 2023

All “PAF" (person authorizing filing) information is displayed exactly as recorded in the Ontario Business Registry. Where PAF is
not shown against a document, the information has not been recorded in the Ontario Business Registry.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Bus!ness Service Delivery.

V. Quinoniskbo- -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent informatlon filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Buslness Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded in the electronlc records malntained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report is generated for a previous date, If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronlc records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report.
Additlonal historical information may exist In paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509200191
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Ministry of Public and

o n ta ri o @ Business Service Delivery

Profile Report

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING CANADA GP INC. as of June 26, 2024

Act Business Corporations Act

Type Ontario Business Corporation

Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING CANADA GP INC.

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN) 1000393816

Governing Jurisdiction Canada - Ontario

Status Active

Date of Incorporation December 20, 2022

Registered or Head Office Address 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Buslness Service Dellvery.

V. Quimfonitbo- -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If thls report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Informatlon flled and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indlcated on the report.
Additional historical information may exlst in paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509200191
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Director(s)

Minimum Number of Directors 1

Maximum Number of Directors 10

Name PAUL ANTONIADIS

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Resident Canadian Yes

Date Began December 20, 2022

Name DON HOLMSTROM

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Resident Canadian Yes

Date Began December 20, 2022

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonistbo- -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent informatlon flled on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Minlstry up to the “as of’ date indicated on the report.
Additional historical information may exlst In paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509200191
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Officer(s)

Name PAUL ANTONIADIS

Position Chief Executive Officer

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Date Began December 20, 2022

Name DON HOLMSTROM

Position Chief Financial Officer

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Date Began December 20, 2022

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quindonistho- W -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limlted Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded in the electronlc records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of’ date Indicated on the report.
Additional historlcal information may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 3 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509200191
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Corporate Name History
Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING CANADA GP INC.

Effective Date December 20, 2022

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Publlc and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quismdonistbo- W -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Buslness Names Act and Limlted Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.

AddItional historical information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
Page 4 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509200191
Report Generated on june 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Business Names
This corporation does not have any active business hames registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certlfled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonitho W -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Informatlon filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded In the electronlc records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of’ date indicated on the report.
Additlonal historlcal Information may exlst in paper or microfiche format.

Page 5 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509200191
Report Generated on june 26, 2024, 09:47

Expired or Cancelled Business Names
This corporation does not have any expired or cancelled business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certlfied a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Buslness Service Dellvery.

V. Quimlonitbo- W
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Informatlon filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fillngs
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Minlistry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Informatlon flled and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of" date Indicated on the report.
Additional historlcal Informatlon may exist In paper or microfiche format.
Page 6 of 7



Document List
Filing Name

CIA - Notice of Change
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Notice of Change
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Initial Return
PAF: CARLY FERRIER

BCA - Articles of Incorporation

Effective Date

October 05, 2023

July 11, 2023

December 20, 2022

December 20, 2022

Transaction Number: APP-A10509200191
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

All “PAF" (person authorizing filing) information is displayed exactly as recorded in the Ontario Business Registry. Where PAF is
not shown against a document, the information has not been recorded in the Ontario Business Registry.

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Minlistry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonitbo -

Director/Registrar

This report sets out the most recent informatlon flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fillings
and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent informatlon filed and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report.

Additional historical iInformation may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 7 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198445
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Ministry of Public and

o n ta ri o @ Business Service Delivery

Profile Report

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING BRAMPTON GP INC. as of June 26, 2024

Act Business Corporations Act

Type Ontario Business Corporation

Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING BRAMPTON GP
INC.

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN) 1000393786

Governing Jurisdiction Canada - Ontario

Status Active

Date of Incorporation- December 20, 2022

Registered or Head Office Address 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quisdonithe W)
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent informatlon filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronlc records maintained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report s generated
for a prevlous date, the report sets out the most recent Information flled and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.
Additional historical informatlon may exIst in paper or microfiche format.

Page 1 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198445
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Active Director(s)
Minimum Number of Directors

Maximum Number of Directors 10

Name PAUL ANTONIADIS

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Resident Canadian Yes

Date Began December 20, 2022

Name DON HOLMSTROM

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Resident Canadian Yes

Date Began December 20, 2022

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Buslness Service Delivery.

V. QuimSonitbo- W)
Director/Reglstrar
This report sets out the most recent informatlon flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnershlips Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.
Additlonal historlcal information may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 2 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198445
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Active Officer(s)

Name PAUL ANTONIADIS

Position Chief Executive Officer

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Date Began December 20, 2022

Name DON HOLMSTROM

Position Chief Financial Officer

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Date Began December 20, 2022

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quindonistbe- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Informatlon filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic recards malntained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Minlstry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report,
Additlonal historical information may exist in paper or microfiche format

Page 3 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198445
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Corporate Name History

Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING BRAMPTON GP
INC.
Effective Date December 20, 2022

Certlfled a true copy of the record of the Minlstry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quindoniskho W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Informatlon filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this repart Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded in the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indlcated on the report.
Addltlonal historical information may exlst In paper or microfiche format.

Page 4 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198445
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Active Business Names
This corporation does not have any active business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Minlstry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quimloniatlo- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information fiied on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded in the electronlc records maintalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information flled and recorded In the electronic records malntalned by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.

Additional historical information may exlst In paper or microfiche format.
Page 5 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198445
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Expired or Cancelled Business Names
This corporation does not have any expired or cancelled business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quimfonistbo- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information flled on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronlc records malntalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information flled and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the "as of" date Indicated on the report.

Addltional historical information may exist In paper or microfiche format.
Page 6 of 7



Document List
Filing Name

CIA - Notice of Change
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Notice of Change
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Initial Return
PAF: CARLY FERRIER

BCA - Articles of Incorporation

Effective Date

October 05, 2023

July 11, 2023

December 20, 2022

December 20, 2022

Transaction Number: APP-A10509198445
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

All “PAF” (person authorizing filing) information is displayed exactly as recorded in the Ontario Business Registry. Where PAF is
not shown against a document, the information has not been recorded in the Ontario Business Registry.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.
QuimTanistle- W) -

Director/Registrar

This report sets out the most recent information flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnershlps Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date, If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded In the electronlc records malntained by the Ministry up to the "as of” date Indicated on the report.

Additlonal historlcal information may exIst in paper or microfiche format.

Page 7 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509200094
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Ministry of Public and

0 n ta r i o @ Business Service Delivery

Profile Report

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INDUSTRIAL CANADA GP INC, as of June 26, 2024

Act Business Corporations Act

Type Ontario Business Corporation

Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INDUSTRIAL CANADA GP INC.

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN) 1000393790

Governing Jurisdiction Canada - Ontario

Status Active

Date of Incorporation December 20, 2022

Registered or Head Office Address 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Certlfled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quindonistbo- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent informatlon flled on or after june 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information flled and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated an the report
Addltional historical infarmatlon may exist In paper or microfiche format.

Page 1 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509200094
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Director(s)

Minimum Number of Directors 1

Maximum Number of Directors 10

Name PAUL ANTONIADIS

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Resident Canadian Yes

Date Began December 20, 2022

Name DON HOLMSTROM

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Resident Canadian Yes

Date Began December 20, 2022

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonikds W -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded in the electronlc records malintained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.
Additional historical information may exist In paper or microfiche format.

Page 2 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509200094
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Officer(s)

Name PAUL ANTONIADIS

Position Chief Executive Officer

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Date Began December 20, 2022

Name DON HOLMSTROM

Position Chief Financial Officer

Address for Service 470 Granville Street, Unit 814, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V6C 1V5, Canada

Date Began December 20, 2022

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quim{onikho- W -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fillngs
and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the "as of" date Indlcated on the report.
Additional historical information may exist In paper or microfiche format.

Page 3 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509200094
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Corporate Name History
Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INDUSTRIAL CANADA GP INC.

Effective Date December 20, 2022

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonikho- W
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent informatlon filed on or after june 27, 1992 in respect of corporatlons and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up te the "as of” date Indicated on the report.

Additlonal historical Information may exist In paper or microfiche format.
Page 4 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509200094
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Business Names
This corporation does not have any active business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quinsonitbo W -
Director/Reglstrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and LImited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of" date Indicated on the report.
Additlonal historlcal Information may exist In paper or microfiche format.

Page 5 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509200094
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Expired or Cancelled Business Names
This corporation does not have any expired or cancelled business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certlfied a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

Quimoristle-W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Informatlon filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the repart Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information flled and recorded in the electronlc records maintained by the Minlstry up to the “as of" date indicated on the report.

Addltional historical Information may exist In paper or microfiche format.
Page 6 of 7



Document List
Filing Name

CIA - Notice of Change
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Notice of Change
PAF: DENNIS PETERSON

CIA - Initial Return
PAF. CARLY FERRIER

BCA - Articles of Incorporation

Effective Date

October 05, 2023

July 11, 2023

December 20, 2022

December 20, 2022

Transaction Number: APP-A10509200094
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

All "PAF" (person authorizing filing) information is displayed exactly as recorded in the Ontario Business Registry. Where PAF is
not shown against a document, the information has not been recorded in the Ontario Business Registry.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonitbo- W) -

Director/Registrar

This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. if this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information flled and recorded in the electronic records malntalned by the Ministry up to the “as of* date Indicated on the report.

Additional historical informatlon may exlst in paper or microfiche format.

Page 7 of 7



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199609
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Ministry of Public and

o n t a ri o @ Business Service Delivery

Profile Report

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING CANADA LP as of June 26, 2024

Act Limited Partnerships Act

Type Ontario Limited Partnership

Firm Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING CANADA LP
Business ldentification Number (BIN) 1000393984

Declaration Status f Active

Declaration Date December 20, 2022

Expiry Date December 19, 2027

Principal Place of Business 110 Yonge Street, 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4, Canada
Activity (NAICS Code) 326114 - Plastic film and sheet manufacturing

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. QuimTonitbo-W)
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent informatlon flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded in the electronic records maintalned by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report is generated for a previous date. If this report s generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Informatlon filed and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report.
Additional historical Informatlon may exist In paper or microfiche format.

Page 1 of 6



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199609
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

General Partners

Number of General Partners 1

Partners

Partner 1

Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING CANADA GP INC.

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN) 1000393816

Entity Type Ontario Business Corporation

Registered or Head Office Address 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonistbo- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1934 In respect of Business Names Act and LImited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the "as of* date indicated on the report.
Addltional historical information may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 2 of 6



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199609
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Firm Name History

Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING CANADA LP
Effective Date July 13,2023

Previous Name PETERSON MCVICAR LLP

Effective Date July 13,2023

Previous Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING CANADA LP
Effective Date December 20, 2022

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quindonistho- W) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded in the electronic records malntalned by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. if this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent informatlon filed and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indlcated on the report.

Additlonal historlcal informatlon may exist in paper or microfiche format.
Page 3 of 6



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199609
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Active Business Names
This entity does not have any active business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certlfied a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quindoniskho-W) - .
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Informatlon flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded in the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.

Additional historical information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
Page 4 of 6



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199609
Report Generated on june 26, 2024, 09:47

Expired or Cancelled Business Names
This entity does not have any expired or cancelled business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Buslness Service Delivery.

Quimonintle- W -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporatlons and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronlc records maintained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a prevlous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indlcated on the report.
Additlonal historical Information may exlst in paper or microfiche format.

Page 5 of 6



Transaction Number: APP-A10509199609
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:47

Document List

Filing Name Effective Date
Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership October 10, 2023
LPA - Declaration of Change for a Limited Partnership October 05, 2023
(Automated process - Address of Corporate Partner

Amended)

Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership July 13, 2023
Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership july 13,2023

LPA - Declaration of Change for a Limited Partnership July 11, 2023
(Automated process - Address of Corporate Partner

Amended)

LPA - File a Declaration of an Ontario Limited Partnership December 20, 2022

Certlfied a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quinonistho- ) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records malntalned by the Ministry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of" date Indlcated on the report.

Additional historical information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
Page 6 of 6



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198833
Report Generated on june 26, 2024, 09:46

Ministry of Public and

o nta ri o @ Business Service Delivery

Profile Report

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING BRAMPTON LP as of June 26, 2024

Act Limited Partnerships Act

Type Ontario Limited Partnership

Firm Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING BRAMPTON LP
Business Identification Number (BIN) 1000393987

Declaration Status Active

Declaration Date December 20, 2022

Expiry Date December 19, 2027

Principal Place of Business 110 Yonge Street, 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 174, Canada
Activity (NAICS Code) 326114 - Plastic film and sheet manufacturing

Certlfied a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quim{oniddo- W)
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent informatlon flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If thls report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronic records malntalned by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.
Additional historical Information may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 1 of 6



Transaction Number: APP-A10509198833
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

General Partners

Number of General Partners 1

Partners

Partner 1

Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING BRAMPTON GP
INC.

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN) 1000393786

Entity Type Ontario Business Corporation

Registered or Head Office Address 110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quim{onitbo- -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Infermation flled on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded In the electronic records malntalned by the Minlstry up to the “as of" date indlcated on the report.
Additional historlcal information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509198833
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Firm Name History

Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING BRAMPTON LP
Effective Date July 13,2023 :

Previous Name PETERSON MCVICAR LLP

Effective Date July 13, 2023

Previous Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING BRAMPTON LP
Effective Date December 20, 2022

Certlfied a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

Director/Registrar

This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporatlons and April 1, 1994 In respect of Buslness Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the "as of" date Indicated on the report.
Additional historical Informatlon may exist in paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509198833
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Active Business Names

Name SHEPHERD THERMOFORMING & PACKAGING
Business Identification Number (BIN) 1000429103

Registration Date January 27, 2023

Expiry Date January 26, 2028

Certlfied a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Dellvery.

V. Quoimfonidde W
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information flled and recorded in the electronic records malntalned by the Ministry up to the “as of" date Indicated on the report.
Additlonal historical information may exlst In paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509198833
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Expired or Cancelled Business Names
This entity does not have any expired or cancelled business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Minlstry of Public and Buslness Service Delivery.

V. Quinsonistbo- W)
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1952 In respect of corporatlons and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronlc records malntained by the Minlistry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If thls report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent informatlon filed and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date Indicated on the report.

Additlonal historical Information may exlst In paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509198833
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Document List

Filing Name Effective Date
Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership October 19, 2023
LPA - Declaration of Change for a Limited Partnership October 05, 2023
(Automated process - Address of Corporate Partner

Amended)

Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership July 13, 2023
Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership July 13, 2023

LPA - Declaration of Change for a Limited Partnership July 11,2023
(Automated process - Address of Corporate Partner

Amended)

LPA - File a Declaration of an Ontario Limited Partnership December 20, 2022

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quinfoniskle- -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 in respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronlc records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of" date Indicated on the report.
Additlonal historlcal information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509198639
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Ministry of Public and

O n ta ri o @ Business Service Delivery

Profile Report

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INDUSTRIAL CANADA LP as of June 26, 2024

Act Limited Partnerships Act

Type Ontario Limited Partnership

Firm Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INDUSTRIAL CANADA LP
Business Identification Number (BIN) 301356143

Declaration Status Active

Declaration Date December 01, 2020

Expiry Date November 30, 2025

Principal Place of Business 110 Yonge Street, 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4, Canada
Activity (NAICS Code) 326114 - Plastic film and sheet manufacturing

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Buslness Service Delivery.

V. Quimdonisthe- W

Director/Registrar

This report sets out the most recent information flled on or after june 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronic records malntalned by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indicated on the report.
Additlonal historical information may exlst in paper or microfiche format.
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General Partners
Number of General Partners

Partners

Partner 1

Name

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN)
Entity Type

Registered or Head Office Address

Partner 2

Name

Ontario Corporation Number (OCN)
Entity Type

Registered or Head Office Address

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quim{onibo .

Director/Registrar

Transaction Number: APP-A10509198639
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS (CAD) INC.

1000490599

Ontario Business Corporation

110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INDUSTRIAL CANADA GP INC.
1000393790

Ontario Business Corporation

110 Yonge Street, Suite 1601, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 1T4,
Canada

This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded in the electronlc records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of" date Indicated on the report.

AddlItional historical information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509198639
Report Generated on june 26, 2024, 09:46

Firm Name History
Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INDUSTRIAL CANADA LP

Effective Date December 01, 2020

Certifled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Qoimfoniatbo- W -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Informatlon filed on or after june 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act filings
and recorded in the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent informatlon flled and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry up to the “as of’ date Indicated on the report.

Additional historlcal Information may exist In paper or microfiche format.
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Active Business Names

Name

Business ldentification Number (BIN)
Registration Date

Expiry Date

Name

Business ldentification Number (BIN)
Registration Date

Expiry Date

Certlfled a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfoniakle-W -

Director/Registrar

Transaction Number: APP-A10509198639
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

IPF

1000429097
January 27, 2023
January 26, 2028

INTEGRATED PACKAGING FILMS
1000429120

January 27, 2023

January 26, 2028

This report sets out the most recent information filed on or after June 27, 1952 in respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report Is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
far a previous date, the report sets out the most recent Information filed and recorded In the electronic records maintalned by the Ministry up to the “as of date indicated on the report.

AddItional historical Informatlon may exist in paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509198639
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Expired or Cancelled Business Names
This entity does not have any expired or cancelled business names registered under the Business Names Act in Ontario.

Certified a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

Quimfonitbo- ) -
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and April 1, 1994 in respect of Business Names Act and Limlited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records malntained by the Minlstry as of the date and time the repart is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent informatlon flled and recorded in the electronic records malntalned by the Minlstry up to the “as of* date Indlcated on the report.
Additional historical Information may exist in paper or microfiche format.
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Transaction Number: APP-A10509198639
Report Generated on June 26, 2024, 09:46

Document List

Filing Name Effective Date
LPA - Dedlaration of Change for a Limited Partnership March 04, 2024
(Automated process - Address of Corporate Partner

Amended)

Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership October 05, 2023
LPA - Declaration of Change for a Limited Partnership October 05, 2023
(Automated process - Address of Corporate Partner

Amended)

LPA - Declaration of Change for a Limited Partnership October 05, 2023
(Automated process - Address of Corporate Partner

Amended)

Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership July 13, 2023

LPA - Declaration of Change for a Limited Partnership July 11, 2023
(Automated process - Address of Corporate Partner

Amended)

LPA - File a Declaration of Change for a Limited Partnership ~ January 01, 2023
(Automated process - New Corporate Partner)

LPA - File a Declaration of Change for a Limited Partnership  January 01, 2023
(Automated process - Corporate Partner No Longer Active)

Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership December 30, 2022
Declaration of Change to an Ontario Limited Partnership December 21, 2022
LPA - File a Declaration of an Ontario Limited Partnership December 01, 2020

Certlfied a true copy of the record of the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery.

V. Quimfonitbo- W)
Director/Registrar
This report sets out the most recent Information filed on or after June 27, 1992 In respect of corporations and Aprll 1, 1994 In respect of Business Names Act and Limited Partnerships Act fllings
and recorded In the electronic records maintained by the Ministry as of the date and time the report is generated, unless the report Is generated for a previous date. If this report Is generated
for a previous date, the report sets out the most recent information filed and recorded in the electronic records malntained by the Ministry up to the “as of” date indlcated on the report.
Additional historical informatlon may exist in paper or microfiche format.

Page 6 of 6



' 4 csc
és 251 Little Falls Drive
' ' Wilmington, DE 19808-1674

800.927.9800
CSC GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS (US) INC. 302.636.5454 fax
Matter Number 1253708
DELAWARE STATUS SEARCH www.cscglobal.com

Entity Information

Search Results Date/Time | 06-26-2024 10:05
Entity Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS (US) INC.
File Number 5272339 Status |AR Delinguent, Tax Due since 20240302
Entity Type Corporation Corp Type General
Tax Type A/R Filing Required Stock Corporation Yes
Residency Domestic State DE
Incorporation Date 20130131
Renew Date Expire Date
Bankruptcy Bankrupt Date
Case No
Orig Incorp Country Orig Date
Merged To Number
Qtrly Filings False Last Ann Rpt 2022
Foreign incorporation date
Original foreign name
Original foreign kind

Registered Agent

| Agent Name THE CORPORATION TRUST COMPANY Agent ID__ (9000010
CORPORATION TRUST CENTER

Address 1209 ORANGE ST
WILMINGTON,New Castle

State DE Country us Zip 19801

The information above is taken from the records of Delaware's Office of the Secretary of State and reflects information of record as of

the thru date listed on this report.CSC cannot and does not independently verify the accuracy or completeness of this information and,
accordingly, we make no guaranties or representations about the accuracy or completeness of the information and disclaim any warranties
about it and any liability for errors or omissions. If you wish to obtain a certified copy of documents on file or an official good standing,
please contact your CSC Customer Service Representative

26-Jun-2024 10:05 AM Page 1 of 2



CSC
251 Little Falls Drive

Wilmington, DE 19808-1674

C SC 800.927.9800
GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS (US) INC. 302.636.5454 fax
Matter Number 1253708
DELAWARE STATUS SEARCH www.cscglobal.com
Stock Information
Amendment Number 0 Effective Date 20130131 End Date
Description Class Series Authorized Par Value Designated shares
COMMON 1,000 0.010000 0
Total Shares Authorized 1,000,
No Par Shares 0
Filing History (last 5 filings)
Filing | pocument Code Pages Filing Date/Time  |Efective [Filing Merger Type
Year Date Status
2019 Amendment Name 1 201902%{)2)3:34:00: 20190207 | Archived
2019 Renewal for Void 1 201902%&3:16:00: 20190207 | Archived
2013 Stock Corporation 4 201301%10&3:45:00: 20130131 | Completed
Taxes Due
Tax Year | Filing Fee | Total Tax | Penalty Interest Other Paid Balance
2024 50.00 175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.00
2023 50.00 175.00 200.00 22.00 0.00 0.00 447.00
2022 50.00 175.00 200.00 22.00 0.00 447.00 0.00
Tax Balance 672.00

The information above is taken from the records of Delaware's Office of the Secretary of State and reflects information of record as of

the thru date listed on this report.CSC cannot and does not independently verify the accuracy or completeness of this information and,
accordingly, we make no guaranties or representations about the accuracy or completeness of the information and disclaim any warranties
about it and any liability for errors or omissions. If you wish to obtain a certified copy of documents on file or an official good standing,
please contact your CSC Customer Service Representative

26-Jun-2024 10:05 AM Page 2 of 2



Business Entity Search

Office of the Secretary of State

ilsos.gov

Sl
|

Business Entity Search

Entity Information

Entity GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS (ILLINOIS), LLC
Name
Principal 330 N. WABASH AVE. STE 2100
Address CHICAGO,IL 606110000
File 08740887 Status ACTIVE on 03-07-2024
Number
Entity Type LLC Type of Domestic
LLC
Org. Jurisdiction IL
Date/Admission04-23-2021
Date
Duration PERPETUAL
Annual Annual
Report 03-07-2024 Report 2024
Filing Date Year
Agent BURKELAW AGENTS, INC. Agent 04-23-2021
Information 330 N. WABASH AVE. STE Change
2100 Date

CHICAGO, IL 60611

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 12



6/26/24, 7:38 AM Business Entity Search
Services and More Information
Choose a tab below to view services available to this business and more information about this
business.

Purchase Master Entity Certificate of Good Standing W

Purchase Assumed Name Certificate of Good Standing

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Adopting Assumed Name

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered Office

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 212



6/26/24, 7:39 AM Business Entity Search

W0
= \ii r’ i

2

Business Entity Search

Entity Information

Entity GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS REAL ESTATE U.S., LLC
Name
Principal 330 N. WABASH AVE. STE 2100
Address CHICAGO,IL 606110000
File 08740852 Status ACTIVE on 03-07-2024
Number
Entity Type LLC Type of Domestic
LLC

Org. Jurisdiction IL
Date/Admission04-23-2021
Date
Duration PERPETUAL
Annual Annual
Report 03-07-2024 Report 2024
Filing Date Year
Agent BURKELAW AGENTS, INC. Agent 04-23-2021
Information 330 N. WABASH AVE. STE Change

2100 Date

CHICAGO, IL 60611

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch

112



6/26/24, 7:39 AM Business Entity Search
Services and More Information

Choose a tab below to view services available to this business and more information about this
business.

Purchase Master Entity Certificate of Good Standing

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Adopting Assumed Name

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered Office

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 2/2



CSC GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING US LLC

Matter Number

1253708

DELAWARE STATUS SEARCH

CcsSC

251 Little Falls Drive
Wilmington, DE 19808-1674
800.927.9800
302.636.5454 fax

www.cscglobal.com

Entity Information

Search Results Date/Time | 06-26-2024 10:16
Entity Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING US LLC
File Number 7275090 Status |Cease Good Standing since 20240601
Entity Type Limited Liability Corp Type General
Tax Type Annual L.L.C. Tax Stock Corporation No
Residency Domestic State DE
Incorporation Date 20230202
Renew Date Expire Date
Bankruptcy Bankrupt Date
Case No
Orig Incorp Country Orig Date
Merged To Number
Qtrly Filings False Last Ann Rpt
Foreign incorporation date
Original foreign name
Original foreign kind Unknown
Registered Agent
| Agent Name CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY Agent ID (9000014

251 LITTLE FALLS DRIVE
Address
WILMINGTON,New Castle

State DE Country Us Zip 19808

The information above is taken from the records of Delaware's Office of the Secretary of State and reflects information of record as of
the thru date listed on this report. CSC cannot and does not independently verify the accuracy or completeness of this information and,

accordingly, we make no guaranties or representations about the accuracy or completeness of the information and disclaim any warranties

about it and any liability for errors or omissions. If you wish to obtain a certified copy of documents on file or an official good standing,
please contact your CSC Customer Service Representative

26-Jun-2024 10:16 AM

Page 1 of 2




CO

CSC GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS PACKAGING US LLC

Matter Number

1253708

DELAWARE STATUS SEARCH

CsC

251 Little Falls Drive
Wilmington, DE 19808-1674

800.927.9800

302.636.5454 fax

www.cscglobal.com

Stock Information

Amendment Number

Effective Date

End Date

Description Class

Series

Authorized

Par Value

Designated shares

Total Shares Authorized

No Par Shares

Filing History (last 5 filings)

Filing |pocument Code Pages Filing Date/Time |Efective |Filing Merger Type

Year Date Status

2023 LLC 1 [20230202T16:07:00:| 54530000 | Archived

0000
Taxes Due
Tax Year | Filing Fee | Total Tax | Penalty Interest Other Paid Balance
2024 0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
2023 0.00 300.00 200.00 7.00 0.00 0.00 507.00
Tax Balance 807.00

The information above is taken from the records of Delaware's Office of the Secretary of State and reflects information of record as of

the thru date listed on this report.CSC cannot and does not independently verify the accuracy or completeness of this information and,
accordingly, we make no guaranties or representations about the accuracy or completeness of the information and disclaim any warranties
about it and any liability for errors or omissions. If you wish to obtain a certified copy of documents on file or an official good standing,

please contact your CSC Customer Service Representative

26-Jun-2024 10:16 AM

Page 2 of 2
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CSC GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS DIRECT LLC

Matter Number

1253708

DELAWARE STATUS SEARCH

CsC

251 Little Falls Drive
Wilmington, DE 19808-1674
800.927.9800

302.636.5454 fax

www.cscglobal.com

Entity Information

Search Results Date/Time | 06-26-2024 10:18
Entity Name GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS DIRECT LLC
File Number 7275091 Status | Cease Good Standing since 20240601
Entity Type Limited Liability Corp Type General
Tax Type Annual L.L.C. Tax Stock Corporation No
Residency Domestic State DE
Incorporation Date 20230202
Renew Date Expire Date
Bankruptcy Bankrupt Date
Case No
Orig Incorp Country Orig Date
Merged To Number
Qtrly Filings False Last Ann Rpt
Foreign incorporation date
Original foreign name
Original foreign kind Unknown
Registered Agent
Agent Name CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY Agent ID 9000014

251 LITTLE FALLS DRIVE
Address
WILMINGTON,New Castle

State DE Country us Zip 19808

The information above is taken from the records of Delaware's Office of the Secretary of State and reflects information of record as of
the thru date listed on this report.CSC cannot and does not independently verify the accuracy or completeness of this information and,

accordingly, we make no guaranties or representations about the accuracy or completeness of the information and disclaim any warranties

about it and any liability for errors or omissions. If you wish to obtain a certified copy of documents on file or an official good standing,
please contact your CSC Customer Service Representative

26-Jun-2024 10:18 AM

Page 1 of 2




CO

CSC GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS DIRECT LLC

Matter Number 1253708
DELAWARE STATUS SEARCH

CsC

251 Little Falls Drive
Wilmington, DE 19808-1674

800.927.9800

302.636.5454 fax

www.cscglobal.com

Stock Information

Amendment Number

0 Effective Date

End Date

Description Class

Series

Authorized

Par Value

Designated shares

Total Shares Authorized

No Par Shares

Filing History (last 5 filings)

Filind |pocument Code pages |Filing Date/Time | Efective  |Filing Merger Type

Year Date Status

2023 LLC 1 [20280202T16:07:00: 50530002 | Archived

0000
Taxes Due
Tax Year | Filing Fee | Total Tax | Penalty Interest Other Paid Balance
2024 0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00
2023 0.00 300.00 200.00 7.00 0.00 0.00 507.00
Tax Balance 807.00

The information above is taken from the records of Delaware's Office of the Secretary of State and reflects information of record as of

the thru date listed on this report.CSC cannot and does not independently verify the accuracy or completeness of this information and,
accordingly, we make no guaranties or representations about the accuracy or completeness of the information and disclaim any warranties
about it and any liability for errors or omissions. If you wish to obtain a certified copy of documents on file or an official good standing,
please contact your CSC Customer Service Representative

26-Jun-2024 10:18 AM

Page 2 of 2



6/26/24, 7:40 AM BUSINESS ORGANIZATIONS INQUIRY - VIEW ENTITY

TEXAS SECRETARY of STATE
JANE NELSON

BUSINESS ORGANIZATIONS INQUIRY - VIEW ENTITY

Filing Number: 804526987 Entity Type: = Domestic Limited Liability Company (LLC)
Original Date of Filing: April 1, 2022 Entity Status: In existence
Formation Date: N/A
Tax ID: 32084108276 FEIN:
Duration: Perpetual
Name: good natured Products (Texas) LLC
Address: 11413 N BURLINGTON RD
RICHMOND, IL 60071-9647 USA
ASSOCIATED
REGISTERED AGENT  FILING HISTORY NAMES MANAGEMENT ~ ASSUMED NAMES ENTITIES INITIAL ADDRESS
rEName Address Inactive Date

C T Corporation System 1999 Bryan St. Suite 900
Dallas, TX 75201-3136 USA

[ Order | I?eturn to Search |

Instructions:
@ To place an order for additional information about a filing press the '‘Order’ button.

https://direct.sos.state.tx.us/corp_inquiry/corp_inquiry-entity.asp?spage=ra&:Spagefrom=2&:Sfiling_number=804526987& Ndocument_number=137594...

n



This is Exhibit “B” referred to in the
Affidavit #1 of Paul Antoniadis affirmed
before me at Vancouver, BC,
this 27th day of June 2024

Ces 7=

A Commissioner/Notary Public for the
Province of British Columbia



Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022



O Grant Thornton

Grant Thornton LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report Sute 600

333 Seymour Street
Vancouver, BC
V6B 0A4

T +1 604 687 2711
F +1 604 685 6569

To the Shareholders of
good natured Products Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of good natured Products Inc. (the "Company”),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023 and the
consolidated statement of net loss and comprehensive loss, consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders' equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IFRS Accounting Standards).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 1 in the consolidated financial statements, which indicates that the Company
incurred a net loss of $15,481,000 during the year ended December 31, 2023, and as of that date, the
Company has an accumulated deficit of $68,809,000 and the Company’s current liabilities exceed its
current assets by $1,431,000. As stated in Note 1, these events or conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in Note 1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our auditor’s
report.




@ Grant Thornton

Assessment of the recoverable amount of customer relationships.
Refer to Note 8 of the consolidated financial statements.

Customer relationships are recorded at $1,603,000 as at December 31, 2023. This is following an
impairment recognized during the year of $4,184,000 recorded against the customer relationships
intangible asset.

Management assesses customer relationships when an indicator of impairment exists. Impairment is
recognized when the carrying amount of the customer relationships exceeds the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined using the multi-period excess earnings method, which is based
on the net present value of the customer relationships' specific cash flows. This model requires
management to make significant assumptions, including revenue growth rates, attrition rate of acquired
customers, required returns on contributory assets, and discount rate, which are all affected by
expectations about future performance as well as market and economic conditions.

Given the significance of management's judgements and the subjectivity in the estimates used in
determining the recoverable amount of the customer relationships, we have identified the assessment
of the recoverable amount of the customer relationships as a key audit matter.

Qur audit procedures included, amongst other procedures:

s We assessed management's indicator of impairment analysis, considering both internal and
extemal factors for reasonableness;
e  With the assistance of valuation professionals with specialized skills and knowledge:

o we evaluated the Company's model, valuation methodology, terminal growth rate and
discount rate, including assessing the reasonableness of the various inputs used to
determine the discount rate by referencing current industry, economic and
comparable company information, and Company and cash-flow specific risk
premiums; and

o we evaluated key assumptions used by management in estimating the fair value of
the customer list including forecasted revenue, customer attrition rate, and expected
margin on retained customers.

Assessment of the recoverable amount of customer relationships and cash generating units
(“CGU”) to which goodwill has been allocated.

Refer to Note 8 of the consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill is recorded at $8,414,000 as at December 31, 2023. This is following an impairment recognized
during the year of $504,000 recorded against goodwill in the Houston and Ayr CGUs.

Management assesses at least annually, or when an indicator of impairment exists, whether there has
been an impairment loss in the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets. Impairment
is recognized when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the recoverable amount. The Company
performs their annual impairment test as of October 1 and estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated based on value in use using a discounted
cash flow model. The value in use model requires management to make significant assumptions,
including revenue growth rates, earnings growth (decline) rates, terminal growth rate and discount rate,
which are all affected by expectations about future performance as well as market and economic
conditions.

Given the significance of management's judgements and the subjectivity in the estimates used in
determining the value in use of each CGU or group of CGUs, we have identified the assessment of the
recoverable amount of CGUs or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures included, amongst other procedures:

e We evaluated the reasonableness of management's estimates of future operating performance
by comparing forecasts to management's business plan and historical operating performance;
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s With the assistance of valuation professionals with specialized skills and knowledge:

o we evaluated the Company's model, valuation methodology, terminal growth rate and
discount rate, including assessing the reasonableness of the various inputs used to
determine the discount rate by referencing current industry, economic and
comparable company information, and Company and cash-flow specific risk
premiums;

e We assessed how management addressed estimation uncertainty by obtaining support for
management’s sensitivity analysis and the disclosed sensitivity analysis; and

o We assessed the Company’s disclosures included in Note 8 of the consolidated financial
statements for appropriateness in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

Other matter — comparative information

The consolidated financial statement of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022
were audited by another auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements on April 26, 2023.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Management
Discussion and Analysis but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemnative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Audil| Tax | Advisory
& Grant Thornton LLP A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Lid 3
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because of the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Robert J. Riecken.

g}.“g—']zm 127

Vancouver, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
April 29, 2024




GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at 31-Dec As at 31-Dec
2023 2022
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,300 11,860
Trade and other receivables 9,131 9,360
Inventory (note 5) 11,343 12,663
Prepaid expenses 907 929
Total current assets 28,681 34,812
Non-current assets:
Property and equipment (note 6) 44 477 44,692
Right-of-use assets (note 7) 8,474 5,001
Customer relationships (note 8) 1,603 6,447
Intangible and other assets (note 8) 4,391 4,523
Goodwill (note 8) 8,414 8,966
Total assets 3 96,040 104,441
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 21,178 18,265
Contingent consideration liability (note 9(f)) 2,183 -
Current portion of long-term debt (note 9) 6,751 6,593
Total current liabilities 30,112 24,858
Non-current liabilities:
Credit facility (note 9(a)) 13,513 13,854
Convertible debentures (note 9(b)) 15,388 16,079
Mortgages (note Sc) 19,347 19,938
Lease liabilities (note 9(d)) 5,465 2,239
Other long-term debt (note (e)) 2,889 3,210
Contingent consideration liability (note 9(f)) - 2,035
Deferred income tax liabilities (note 12) 590 3,278
Total non-current liabilities 57,192 60,633
Shareholders’ equity:
Common share capital (note 10) 67,182 63,446
Contributed surplus 10,057 7,563
Foreign currency translation reserve 1,306 2,269
Deficit (69,809) (54,328)
Total shareholders’ equity 8,736 18,950
Total liabilities and shareholder' equity $ 96,040 104,441
Nature of operations and going concern (note 1) & Subsequent events (note 19)
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Approved on behalf of the Board:
“Tami Kozikowski " Director “Keith Spencer’ Director




GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Net Loss and Comprehensive Loss
(In thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31

2023 2022
Product revenue (note 17) $ 76,583 $ 100,966
Cost of product revenue (note 13) (56,549) (74,644)
Gross profit 20,034 26,322
Other (expenses) income:

Selling, general, and administrative (note 14) (14,794) (17,872)

Fulfilment and logistics (7,029) (9,317)

Share-based compensation (note 10 (b,d)) (1,837) (2,150)

Depreciation and amortization (2,309) (1,950)

Financing costs (note 9) (7,676) (5,550)

Foreign exchange gain (loss) 88 (847)

Loss on debt repayment and conversion (note 9) - (449)

Gain on interest free loan (note 9 (e(ii))) 42 15

Loss on asset impairment (note 8) (4,688) -
Net loss before taxes (18,169) (11,798)
Deferred income tax recovery (note 12) 2,688 216
Net loss for the year $ (15,481) $ (11,582)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Unrealized currency gain (loss) on translation of foreign operations (963) 1,397
Total comprehensive loss for the year $ (16,444) $ (10,185)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.06) $ (0.05)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic and diluted 261,582 227,845

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)

Year ended December 31

2023 2022
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations: X
Net loss $ (15,481) $ (11,582)
Items not involving cash:
Depreciation and amortization 3,266 2,579
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss (750) 416
Amortization of right of use assets 1,062 957
Share based compensation (note 10(b,d)) 1,837 2,150
Loss on debt retirement and conversion - 449
Gain on interest free loan (42) (15)
Gain on equipment disposal - (107)
Loss on asset impairment 4,688 -
Financing costs 7,676 5,550
Deferred income tax (2,688) (216)
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Trade and other receivables 229 5,102
Inventory 1,320 4170
Prepaid expenses 22 44
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,913 (561)
Finance costs paid (6,596) (4,371)
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities (2,544) 4,565
Financing:
Issuance of common shares and Special Warrants,
net of issuance costs (note 10(a)) 4,444 5,540
Exercise of warrants for common shares (66) 252
Exercise of options for common shares 15 40
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs (note 9) 6,081 35,127
Repayment of long-term debt (note 9) (9,641) (25,927)
Proceeds from equipment sale leaseback - 1,431
Cash provided by financing activities 833 16,463
Investments:
Business acquisition (note 4) - (5,304)
Proceeds on equipment disposal - 109
Purchase of land and building (note 6) - (9,623)
Purchase of equipment (2,632) (5,440)
Purchase of other assets (73) (264)
Cash used in investing activities (2,705) (20,522)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash (144) 699
Increase (decrease) in cash (4,560) 1,205
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,860 10,655
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 7,300 11,860

Supplementary disclosure with respect to cash flows (note 18).
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

1. Nature of Operations and Going Concern:

good natured Products Inc. (the “Company”) is a Canadian company incorporated under the British
Columbia Business Corporations Act. Its common shares are listed on the Canadian TSX Venture
Exchange (“TSX-V") as a Tier 2 issuer under the symbol “GDNP” and on OTCQB Venture Market
in the United States under the symbol of “GDNPF”. The Company’s head office is located at 814 -
— 470 Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada. The Company offers a broad
assortment of plant-based products made all, or in part, from the maximum possible amount of
rapidly renewable resources. All of the Company’s operations are within the packaging and
consumer goods manufacturing industry. The Company manufactures and/or sources over 400
products that are grouped into five business groups: General Merchandise, Packaging, Industrial,
Commercial Supplies, and Services. The Company offers its products through wholesale, direct to
business, and retail channels.

The Company recognized a net loss for the year ending December 31, 2023 of $15,481, and
realized cash used in operations of $2,544. As at December 31, 2023, the Company has an
accumulated deficit of $69,809 and an excess of current liabilities over current assets of $1,431.
The continuing operations of the Company are dependent upon its ability to successfully complete
discussions with its primary lender regarding future waivers, and successful renegotiations with its
existing covenants. While the Company has successfully negotiated waivers in the past, there can
be no assurance that the outcome of those discussions will be completed on a timely basis under
terms acceptable to the Company.

The above conditions present material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts
and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue
as a going concern. Such adjustments could be material.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which
assumes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business for the foreseeable future.



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

2. Basis of presentation:

@)

(c)

Statement of compliance:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IFRS Accounting Standards”).

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors
on April 29, 2024,

Basis of measurement:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for items that are measured at fair value. The Company has no significant financial
instruments which are measured at fair value at December 31, 2023 with the exception of
contingent consideration (note 9(f)).

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments:
(/) Significant estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS
Accounting Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. The underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that management believes to be reasonable under
the circumstances, and are subject to change as new events occur, as more industry
experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained and as the Company’s
operating environment changes.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period during which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected. Significant areas having estimation uncertainty include
the following:



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

2. Basis of presentation (continued):
(c) Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments:
(i) Significant estimates and assumptions (continued):
Fair value estimates associated with business combinations (note 4)

In business combinations, the fair value of the assets acquired, and liabilities assumed, the
fair value of consideration transferred including contingent consideration and the resulting
goodwill, if any, requires that management make certain judgments and estimates taking
into account information available at the time of acquisition about future events, it generally
requires time to obtain the information necessary to identify and measure these items as
of the acquisition date:

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Company reports in its consolidated financial
statements provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.

During the allowable measurement period, the Company will retrospectively adjust the
provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and, if known, would
have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date. The Company
may also recognize additional assets or liabilities if new information is obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and, if known, would have
resulted in the recognition of those assets and liabilities as of that date. The measurement
period ends as soon as the Company receives the information it was seeking about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date or learns that more information
is not obtainable and shall not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Financial instruments:

The Company enters financial instrument arrangements which require management to
make judgments to determine if such arrangements are derivative instruments in their
entirety or contain embedded derivatives, including whether those embedded derivatives
meet the criteria to be separated from their host contract, in accordance with IFRS 9,
Financial Instruments. Key judgments include whether the value of a contract changes in
response to a change in an underlying rate, price, index or other variable, and for
embedded derivatives, whether the economic risks and characteristics are not closely
related to the host contract and a separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative on a standalone basis.



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

2. Basis of presentation (continued):

(c) Use of estimates, assumptions, and judgments:

U]

(i)

Significant estimates and assumptions (continued):
Depreciation and amortization rates for intangible assets, property and equipment:

Depreciation and amortization expenses are allocated based on estimated asset lives and
associated depreciation and amortization rates. Should the asset life or depreciation rate
differ from the initial estimate, an adjustment would be made in the consolidated statement
of net loss and comprehensive loss prospectively.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. The Company has selected
the first day of the fourth quarter as the time of the annual impairment test. The fair value
methodologies used by the Company in testing goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets include assumptions related to sales trends, discount rates, market conditions and
other assumptions that are judgmental in nature. If future economic conditions or operating
performance, such as declines in sales or increases in discount rates, are different than
those projected by management in its most recent impairment tests for goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets, future impairment charges may be required (note 8).

Share based payments and warrants:

The critical estimates and assumptions underlying the measurement of share-based
payments and warrants are set out in notes 10 (b), 10 (c) and 10(d) respectively.

Significant judgments:
Determination of a business

Determination of whether a set of assets acquired, and liabilities assumed constitute a
business may require the Company to make certain judgments, taking into account all facts
and circumstances. A business consists of inputs, including non-current assets and
processes, including operational processes, that when applied to those inputs have the
ability to create outputs that provide a return to the Company and its shareholders.

In the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company concluded that FormTex
Plastics Corporation (“FormTex") met the definition of a business and, accordingly, the
acquisition was accounted for as a business combination (note 4).



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

2. Basis of presentation (continued):
(c) Use of estimates, assumptions, and judgments:
(i) Significant judgments (continued):
Functional currency

The functional currency for the Company and its subsidiaries is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which each operates. The Company has determined that its
functional currency is the Canadian dollar for its Canadian subsidiaries and the United
States dollar (“‘USD”) for its US subsidiaries. The determination of functional currency may
require certain judgements to determine the primary economic environment and is
determined based on the currency that mainly influences sales prices, labour, materials,
other costs of sales and in which financing is raised. The Company reconsiders the
functional currency used when there is a change in events and conditions which
determined the primary economic environment.

Going concern:

Management applied judgment assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern when preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2023. Management considered a wide range of factors including possible
outcomes of discussions with its primary lender with regards to future waivers and
renegotiations around its existing covenants. As a result of the assessment and as
described in Note 1, management concluded the going concern basis of accounting is
appropriate however there are material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
and do not include any adjustments to the carrying amounts and classification of assets
and liabilities and reported revenues and expenses that may otherwise be required if the
going concern basis was not appropriate. Such adjustments could be material.



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3. Material accounting policies:

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

(a) Basis of consolidation:

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2023. All subsidiaries of the Company are 100%

owned.
Country of

Entity Name Ownership % Incorporation
good natured Products (CAD) Inc. [ 100% owned | Canada
good natured Products (US) Inc. 100% owned | USA
Shepherd Thermoforming & Packaging Inc. (“Shepherd”) 100% owned | Canada
Good Natured Real Estate Holdings (Ontario) Inc. ! 100% owned | Canada
Integrated Packaging Films GP Inc. (“IPF”) 100% owned | Canada
Mechar Amco Ltd. ! 100% owned | Canada

| IPF Holdings Inc. 100% owned | Canada

| 1306187 BC Ltd. 100% owned | Canada

| good natured Products Real Estate U.S. LLC 100% owned | USA

| good natured Products (lllinois) LLC 100% owned | USA

| good natured Products Texas U.S., LLC ? 100% owned | USA

| good natured Products Packaging Brampton LP (GNPPB)® | 100% owned | Canada
good natured Products Industrial Canada LP (GNPIC)3 100% owned | Canada
good natured Products Packaging Canada LP (GNPPC)3 100% owned | Canada
good natured Products Direct LLC? 100% owned | USA
good natured Products Packaging US LLC3 | 100% owned | USA

1 Acquired or incorporated during the year ended December 31, 2021.
2 Acquired or incorporated during the year ended December 31, 2022,

3 Acquired or incorporated during the year ended December 31, 2023.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances, income
and expenses, unrealized gains and losses and dividends resulting from intra-group
transactions have been eliminated on consolidation. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3. Material accounting policies (continued):

(b)

©

Foreign currency translation:

The functional currency of each of the Company'’s entities is determined using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which that entity operates. The presentation currency of
these financial statements is the Canadian dollar.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at rates prevailing at the reporting dates and are
recognized in profit and loss in the period in which they arise. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities
are first expressed in the entity’s respective functional currency and translated into the
presentation currency using exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date, while the income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Translation
differences are recognized in other comprehensive loss and recorded in the “foreign currency
translation reserve” included in equity.

Business combinations:

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
of each business combination is measured, at the date of the exchange, as the aggregate of
the fair value of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by
the Company to the former owners of the acquiree in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs incurred for the business combination are expensed. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are recognized at their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Contingent consideration is measured for fair value at its acquisition date and is included as
part of the consideration transferred in a business combination, subject to the applicable terms
and conditions. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with the corresponding gain
or loss recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognized as an asset and initially measured at cost, being
the excess of the consideration of the acquisition over the Company’s interest in the fair value
of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized. If the Company’s
interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the acquisition, the excess is recognized in earnings or loss
immediately. Goodwill may also arise as a result of the requirement under IFRS Accounting
Standards to record a deferred tax liability on the excess of the fair value of the acquired assets
over their corresponding tax bases, with the corresponding offset recorded as goodwill.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3. Material accounting policies (continued):

(d)

(e

®

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and short-term deposits with a maturity of
three months or less at the date of purchase. Cash equivalents at December 31, 2023 were
$237 (December 31, 2022 — $595).

Inventory:

Inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Inventory cost is determined
on the basis of first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) for finished goods and raw material. Cost includes
expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other
costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of inventories
are recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable value, is
recoghized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment:
(i) Financial assets:

The Company applies the simplified approach in determining expected credit losses, which
requires a probability-weighted estimate of expected lifetime credit losses to be recognized
upon initial recognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of cash shortfalls from all possible default events,
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. Loss allowances for financial
assets at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

(i) Non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date to determine
whether events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may
be less than its recoverable amount. When there is any indication of impairment, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For
impairment testing, non-financial assets that do not generate independent cash flows are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups
of assets (the “cash-generating unit” or “CGU”).
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3. Material accounting policies (continued):

®

(@

Impairment:
(iiy Non-financial assets (continued):

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying value of an asset, CGU or group of CGU’s
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognized in respect of
CGUs are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group
of units) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Property and equipment:

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when acquired. Depreciation is recognized in
profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property and equipment.
Depreciation is charged using the following methods and rates:

Asset Basis Rate
Building Straight line 30-40 years
Manufacturing equipment Straight line 5-20 years
Other equipment Straight line 2-5 years

Right-of-use assets:

The right-of-use assets are comprised of the initial measurement of the corresponding lease
liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives
received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset consistent with the amortization policy by asset class (note 3 (g)). If a lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date
of the lease.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3. Material accounting policies (continued):

@

0

(k)

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is recorded at its estimated fair value at
the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditures are reflected in the statement of net loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

Intangible assets consist of customer relationships acquired, brand acquired, proprietary
formulas and formulations acquired, which include internally capitalized development costs,
and other intangibles. Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on finite life intangible assets
using the following methods and rates:

Intangible asset Basis Rate
Customer relationship Straight line 12 years
Proprietary formulas and formulations Straight line 10 years
Intangibles and other assets Straight line 3-5 years

Brand, an indefinite life intangible asset, and goodwill are not amortized (note 8). The Company
on a quarterly basis reviews for impairment indicators and assesses for impairment annually.

Product development:

Research costs are expensed as they are incurred. Product development costs are expensed
as incurred except when they meet specific criteria for capitalization. Development activities
involve a plan or design to produce new or substantially improved products and processes.
Development costs are capitalized only if costs can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and
the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development to use or sell
the asset. Capitalized development costs are measured at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Capitalized development costs are amortized when
commercial production begins. During the year ended December 31, 2023, $162 of
development costs have been capitalized (year ended December 31, 2022 - $201).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid for the acquisition of an entity over
the fair value of the net tangible and intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is allocated to the
cash generating unit or group of CGUs which are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Goodwill is not subject to amortization.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3. Material accounting policies (continued):

o

Impairment of property and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite life or not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually at year-end, and whenever events or circumstances indicate an
impairment may have occurred, such as a significant adverse change in the business climate
or a decision to sell or dispose all or a portion of a reporting unit. Finite life intangible assets
are tested whenever there is an indication of impairment.

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing the
carrying value of each CGU containing the assets to its recoverable amount. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing the carrying value of each CGU
containing the assets to its recoverable amount. Goodwill is tested for impairment based on the
level at which it is monitored by management, and not at a level higher than an operating
segment. At the date of acquisition, goodwill is allocated to each CGU for the purpose of
impairment testing. A CGU is the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. Goodwill is tested
at least annually for impairment at the CGU level and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. These CGU’s represents the lowest level at which management monitors
goodwill (note 8). The allocation of goodwill to the CGUs requires the use of judgment.

(m) Share-based payment transactions:

Share-based compensation arrangements are measured at fair value and the fair value is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the humber of awards for
which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that
the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number of awards that meet
the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For options granted to non-employees, the share-based compensation cost is measured at the
fair value of the goods or services received, unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably.
For non-employees if the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company will
measure the fair value by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The
share-based compensation is measured at fair value at each vesting date and is recorded when
goods or services from non-employees are received.

Stock option expense is initially recognized based on the fair value of the option at the grant
date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with a corresponding increase in
contributed surplus. When stock options are exercised, the exercise price proceeds together
with the amount initially recorded in contributed surplus are reclassified to share capital.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3.

Material accounting policies (continued):

(m) Share-based payment transactions (continued):

The RSUs and PSUs are awarded to executives and are measured at fair value, which is
estimated based on the closing stock price of the Company at the grant date and using an
option pricing model as appropriate. The fair value of the estimated number of RSUs and PSUs
awarded, that are expected to vest is recognized as share-based compensation expense over
the vesting period of the RSUs and PSUs with a corresponding amount recorded in contributed
surplus until the respective shares are issued in settlement of the RSUs and PSUs. The total
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of PSUs expected to vest
at each reporting date. The corresponding credit for these costs is recognized in contributed
surplus.

DSUs awarded to non-executive directors will be settled in equity and are measured at the fair
value which is determined based on the closing stock price of the Company at the grant date.
The total amount is recognized as an expense at the grant date with the corresponding credit
recognized in contributed surplus.

Management uses judgment to determine the inputs to the fair value estimates. Changes in
these assumptions will impact the calculation of fair value and the amount of compensation
expense recognized in profit or loss.

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services as a
consideration for its own equity instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based
payment transactions, regardless of how the equity instruments are obtained by the Company.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3.

(n)

(0)

Material accounting policies (continued):
Income taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax expense. Current and
deferred taxes are recognized as an expense and included in income or loss for the period,
except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction which is recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax expense is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the
taxable income (tax loss) for a period. Current liabilities (assets) for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation
authorities, using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences which are
differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statement of financial
position and its tax base, the carry-forward of unused tax loses and unused tax credits.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
The Company reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow the benefit of part or all
of these deferred tax assets to be utilized. Such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable income will be available.

Revenue recognition:

The Company recognizes the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled, for the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers under a five-step model: (i) identify
contract(s) with a customer; (ii) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (iii)
determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract; and (v) recognize revenue when or as a performance obligation is
satisfied.

The Company generates revenue primarily through sale of products to various customers.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3. Material accounting policies (continued):
(p) Financial instruments:

(0 Financial assets:

Financial assets are classified and measured at: fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”) and
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") and amortized cost. On initial
recognition of an equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment'’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. Measurement and classification of financial assets are dependent on the Company’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial asset i.e. whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both.

(if) Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments):

The Company measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met: the financial asset is held with the objective to collect contractual cash
flows; and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (*SPPI"). This is referred to as the SPPI test.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate (“EIR”) method and are subject to impairment testing. Interest received is recognized
as part of finance income. Gains and losses are recognized when the asset is
derecognized, modified or impaired. The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost

include:
. cash and cash equivalents; and
. trade and other receivables.

(iif) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL”):

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value i.e. fail the SPPI test. Derivatives are classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at FVTPL
are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss. An embedded derivative will often make a financial asset fail
the SPPI test thereby requiring the instrument to be measured at FVTPL in its entirety.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
On derecognition, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized directly in equity is recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

3. Material accounting policies (continued):

(p) Financial instruments (continued):

() Financial liabilities:

The Company classifies its financial liabilities into one of two categories. The Company's
accounting policy for each category is as follows:

Fair value through profit or loss:

This category comprises derivatives or liabilities acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term. They are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the statement of loss
and comprehensive loss.

The Company recognizes the contingent consideration Liability at FVTPL (Note 9).

Other financial liabilities :

This category includes accounts payable and accrued liabilities, convertible debentures
mortgages and other long-term debt and all of which are measured at amortized cost.

Lease liabilities:

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract.
The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect
to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets
and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For short-term and
low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and
instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued):

("

(s)

()

Unit offerings:

Proceeds received on the issuance of units, consisting of common shares and warrants, are
allocated to common shares and warrants using the relative fair value method whereby
proceeds are allocated in proportion to estimates of the fair value of each component of the
unit. Broker warrants associated with unit offerings are fair valued at the grant date using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model and recognized as share issue costs in equity.

Share capital and contributed surplus:

Share capital and contributed surplus are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to increases in share capital and paid-in capital are recognized as a deduction from
equity. When share capital and paid-in capital are reduced, the amount of the consideration
paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognized as a deduction from equity.

Basic and diluted net loss per share:

Basic net income per share is calculated by dividing the net loss for the fiscal year attributable
to shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of multiple voting shares and
subordinate voting shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted loss per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if potentially dilutive
securities were exercised or converted to common shares. The Company uses the treasury
stock method to compute the dilutive effect of options, warrants and similar instruments. Under
this method the dilutive effect on earnings per share is calculated presuming the exercise of
outstanding options, warrants and similar instruments. It assumes that the proceeds of such
exercise would be used to repurchase common shares at the average market price during the
period. However, the calculation of diluted loss per share excludes the effects of various
conversions including the exercise of options and warrants that would be anti-dilutive. For the
periods presented, the calculation of the diluted loss per share proved to be anti-dilutive.
Accordingly, there is no difference in the amounts presented for the basic and diluted loss per
share.
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Material accounting policies (continued):
New standards and interpretations:

The following new standards and interpretations have been adopted since the release of the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1)

The IASB has issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements which require
entities to disclose their “material” accounting pelicy information rather than their “significant”
accounting policies.

The amendments explain that accounting policy information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring that information could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of the financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may be material because of its
nature, even if the related amounts are immaterial. This amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted. The adoption of
these amendments did not have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1)

The IASB has published Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments
to IAS 1) which clarifies the guidance on whether a liability should be classified as either current
or non-current. The amendments:

s clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should only be based
on rights that are in place "at the end of the reporting period"

e clarify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability

¢ make clear that settlement includes transfers to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services that result in extinguishment of the liability.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued):
(V) New standards and interpretations (continued):
Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

The IASB has issued amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors which introduce a definition of accounting estimates and provide other
clarifications to help entities distinguish accounting policies from accounting estimates. Under
the amendments, accounting estimates are defined as “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The amendments also emphasize
that a change in an accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments
is not an error correction, and that changes in an input or a measurement technique used to
develop an accounting estimate are considered changes in accounting estimates if those
changes in an input or measurement technique are not the result of an error correction. This
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. The adoption
of these amendments did not have a significantimpact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments
to IFRS 1 and IAS 12)

The IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards and IAS 12 Income Taxes which clarify that the initial recognition
exemption set out in IAS 12 does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. The aim of the amendments is to reduce diversity in the
reporting of deferred tax on leases and decommissioning obligations. This amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. The adoption of these
amendments did not have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.
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4. Acquisition
FormTex Plastics Corporation

On July 1, 2022, the Company, through a wholly owned subsidiary, closed the acquisition of all the
business and operating assets of Houston-based FormTex Plastics Corporation (“FormTex") for
cash consideration of $5,981 (or USD $4,649). The acquisition of FormTex was accounted for as
a business combination. The Company incurred $275 in transaction costs.

The following table summarizes the final allocation of the purchase price:

Accounts receivable $ 774
Inventory 618
Manufacturing and other equipment 1,549
Right-of-use assets 1,083
Customer relationships 1,145
Intangibles and other assets 1,210
Goodwill 1,135
Current liabilities (450)
Lease liabilities (1,083)
Net assets acquired $ 5,981

Accounts receivable acquired are at full contract value. The goodwill is calculated as the difference
between the purchase price and the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and
is attributable to expected synergies between FormTex and the Company’s existing operations
including the ability to convert FormTex customers to the Company’s sustainable plastic offerings.
Manufacturing know how, which comprises $1,210 Intangibles and other assets acquired. The
Company considers this as a CGU and as such the goodwill generated from this acquisition has
been allocated to this CGU.

Financial and operating results of FormTex are included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements effective July 1, 2022. For the period of July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022, FormTex
revenues equaled $3,867 with $224 in net income before taxes.

5. Inventory:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Raw materials $ 6,557 $ 7,548
Finished goods 4,786 5115
Total $ 11,343 $ 12,663

During the year ended December 31, 2023, inventory valued at $39,783 was expensed as cost of
goods sold and reflected within cost of product revenue (December 31, 2022 - $59,173).
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6. Property and equipment:

Manufacturing Other Accumulated
Land Building equipment equip. depreciation Total
Dec. 31,2021 $ 535 $ 9,531 $ 16,781 $ 197 $ (1,402) $ 30,463
Additions 3,025 6,669 5,481 6 (1,912) 13,269
Disposals - - (243) - 198 (45)
:)?(r:iig:ge 47 348 641 - (31) 1,005
Dec. 31,2022 $ 8428 % 16,548 $ 22660 $ 203 $ (3,147) $ 44692
Additions - 163 2,469 - (2,471) 161
:)‘(’éﬁf:ge (10) (125) (265) - 24 (376)
Dec. 31,2023 $ 8418 $§ 16,586 $ 24864 $ 203 3 (5,594) § 44477

On October 3, 2022, the Company completed the purchase of the land and buildings located at the
Company’s Ayr, Ontario manufacturing location for cash consideration of $9,600 (the “Ayr
Purchase”). The Ayr Purchase was funded by a $6,500 non-revolving loan facility from HSBC Bank
Canada (*HSBC") with a 5-year term and $2,900 from the Business Development Bank of Canada
("BDC").

7. Right-of use-assets:

The Company enters into leases for manufacturing equipment, buildings, and office spaces for its
operations. The Company is required to recognize a right of use assets for the underlying assets
from these leases.

Accumulated Net Book

Cost amortization Value

December 31, 2021 $ 2,698 (5633) 2,165
Additions 3,438 (739) 2,699
Foreign exchange 151 (14) 137
December 31, 2022 6,287 (1,2886) 5,001
Additions 4,568 (1,062) 3,508
Foreign exchange (46) 13 (33)
December 31 2023 3 10,809 $ (2,335) $ 8,474
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8. Customer relationships, intangible and other assets, and goodwill:

Accumulated Net Book

Customer Lists Amortization Value

December 31, 2021 7962 $ (2,237) 5725
Additions (note 4) 1,145 (5623) 622
Foreigh exchange 175 (75) 100
December 31, 2022 9,282 $ (2,835) 6,447
Additions - (619) (619)
Impaiment (4,184) B (4,184)
Foreign exchange (43) 2 (41)
December 31, 2023 5055 $ (3,452) 1,603

The Company recoghized an impairment loss of its acquired Customer Lists (note 4) of $4,184 for
the year ending December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022 - $0). As at December 31, 2023, the
Company calculated the fair value of its Customer Lists of its Richmond, Ayr, and Houston CGU’s
at $225, $691, and $689 respectively.

Other Accumulated Net Book

Brand Assets Amortization Value

December 31, 2021 $ 2,200 $ 979 $ (54) % 3,125
Additions (note 4) - 1,411 (145) 1,266
Foreign exchange - 133 (1) 132
December 31, 2022 $ 2,200 $ 2523 % (200) $ 4,523
Additions - 73 (176) (103)
Foreign exchange - (29) - (29)
December 31, 2023 $ 2,200 $ 2,567 $ (376) $ 4,391

Other assets consist of capitalized development costs and other intangibles.
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8. Customer relationships, intangible and other assets, and goodwill (continued):

Net Book

Goodwill Value

December 31, 2021 $ 7,684 $ 7,684
Additions (note 4) 1,135 1,135
Foreign exchange 147 147
December 31, 2022 $ 8,966 $ 8,966
Additions - -
Impairment (504) (504)
Foreign exchange (48) (48)
December 31, 2023 $ 8,414 $ 8,414

The Company operates four operating segments to which goodwill, generated through various
acquisitions, has been allocated. These comprise the Richmond, Houston, Ayr and Brampton
CGUs. All goodwill and intangibles are assessed and tested at the CGU, or group of CGU level to
which they have been allocated.

The Company performs goodwill and indefinite life intangibles impairment testing annually or at any
time if an indicator of impairment exists. In determining the recoverable amount of its CGUs, the
Company estimates the value in use, which is determined using a discounted cash flow model. As
of December 31, 2023, an impairment loss of $504 (December 31, 2022: $0) was recognized
against its goodwill and brand.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is calculated using discounted cash flows over five years with
a terminal value generated from continuing use of the group of CGUs. The method considers the
projected operating cash flows by CGU. Specific cash flow estimates for each CGU are projected
based on approved financial forecasts, annual growth assumptions, prescribed 3rd party margins
on intercompany transactions, discount rates and a terminal growth rate of 2.0% to extrapolate the
cash flow projections. A discount rate of 15.3%- 18.6% was used for each of its CGU’s.

CGU Carrying Recoverable Excess
amount amount (deficit)

Richmond, lllinois $ 20,359 $ 20,406 $ 47
Houston, Texas 6,057 5,567 (490)
Ayr, Ontario 17,812 17,798 (14)
Brampton, Ontario 13,973 15,900 1,927
$ 58,201 $ 59,672 $ 1,470

The deficit of the value in use as compared to the CGU carrying amounts, was first allocated to
goodwill. The estimated recoverable amount of the Company’s Houston and Ayr operations
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8. Customer relationships, intangible and other assets, and goodwill (continued):

exceeded their carrying value by $490 and $14 respectively, and resulted in an impairment against
goodwill.

Management considered the following reasonably possible changes in key assumptions related to
gross margin, long term growth assumptions and discount rate, leaving all other assumptions
unchanged. The sensitivity analysis presented is prepared on the basis that the reasonably
possible change in each key assumption does not have a consequential impact on other
assumptions used in the impairment review. The associated impact on the impairment assessment
is presented in the table below.

Recoverable amount by CGU, net of carrying amount

Richmond, Houston, Ayr, Brampton,
lllinois Texas Ontario Ontario
Base case at Dec 31, 2023 $ 47 $ (490) $ (14) $ 1,927

Change in gross margin %
Decrease by 1% (1,844) (1,059) (777) 665
Increase by 1% 1,940 80 748 3,189

Change in long-term growth %

Decrease by 1% (382) (682) (442) 1,162
Increase by 1% 548 (273) 468 2,787

Change in discount rate %
Decrease by 1% 1,547 (192) 1,087 1,018
Increase by 1% (1,243) (751) (990) 2,956
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9. Long-term debt:

Convertible Lease Other Long-
Credit Facility =~ Debentures Mortgage Liability term debt Total
(a) (b) (© {d) {e)
Dec. 31, 2021 $ 19,429 $ 15548 $ 3,446 $ 2230 $ 5702 $§ 46,355
Proceeds, net 17,080 - 17,000 1,574 3,058 38,712
Repayment (24,057) - (202) (881) (752) (25,892)
Conversion - (42) - - - (42)
Accretion / Loss 562 573 - 172 175 1,482
Foreign Exchange 840 - 236 61 161 1,298
Dec. 31, 2022 $ 13,854 $ 16,079 $ 20,480 $ 5052 § 6448 § 61,913
Proceeds, net 4,251 - - 4,623 1,829 10,703
Repayment (4,526) - (546) (1,940) (2,629) (9,641)
Accretion / Loss 263 624 - 3 890
Foreign Exchange (329) - (84) (59) (40) (512)
Dec. 31, 2023 $ 13513 § 16703 $ 19,850 $ 7676 $ 5611 $ 63,353

The table below summarizes the breakdown of the current and non-current portion of long-term debt:

Credit Convertible Lease OtherLong-  Contingent

Facility Debentures Morigages Liability term debt Earnout Total
Current Portion $ - 3 1,315  § 503 § 2211 § 2722 % 2183 § 8934
Non-current portion 13,513 15,388 19,347 5,465 2,889 - 56,602
Totallong-termdebt  § 13513 § 16703 $ 19,850 $ 7676 $§ 5611 $ 2183 § 65536
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9. Long-term debt (continued):

The required undiscounted annual repayments of the Company’s long-term debt for the twelve months
ending December 31 follow:

Credit Convertible Lease Other Long- Contingent

Facility Debentures Morigages Liability term debt Earnout e
2024 $ - 8 1,315 $ 503§ 2211 % 2722 § 2,183 $ 8934
2025 512 2,312 1,733 - 4,557
2026 14,215 17,250 3,749 2,018 698 - 37,930
2027 - - 6,826 1,127 613 - 8,566
2028 and beyond - 8,260 8 - - 8,268

$14,215 $ 18565 $ 19,850 $ 7676 $ 5766 $ 2183 $ 68,255

a) Credit Facility:

On August 26, 2022, the Company completed a USD $55,000 financing (the “"Senior Credit
Facility") with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Wells Fargo”), through its wholly owned subsidiary
Wells Fargo Capital Finance Corporation Canada, consisting of a USD $30,000 asset-based
revolving credit facility and an uncommitted USD $25,000 revolving facility, available at the
discretion of Wells Fargo. The term length of the revolving credit facility is the lesser of 5 years
or 90 days prior to the maturity of the convertible debentures (October 31, 2026). The initial
draw on the Senior Credit Facility and partial proceeds from the $10,500 BDC Mortgage
Refinancing (Note 9 (c(iii)) were used to retire all outstanding debt with the Company’s previous
credit facility provider.

Since the original completion, the Company has completed several agreements with Wells
Fargo amending the Credit Agreement. The major changes included: waiving all EBITDA
requirements through the end of December 31, 2023; increasing the minimum liquidity
requirement to $6,000 effective February 29, 2024; and, reducing the revolving loan limit from
USD $30,000 to USD $20,000.

The Senior Credit Facility will bear interest at the U.S. Secured Overnight Financing Rate
("SOFR”) plus 2.50% - 3.00% subject to certain operating benchmarks. The Senior Credit
Facility is secured by a general security interest over the assets of all existing and future
subsidiaries of the Company. As of December 31, 2023, the Company is in compliance with all
covenants.
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9. Long-term debt (continued):

b) Convertible Debentures:

Issuance Net Book

Debentures Discount Cost Value

December 31, 2021 $ 18,615 $ (2,077) $ (990) $ 15,548
Conversion (i) (50) 5 3 (42)
Accretion - 382 191 573
December 31, 2022 $ 18,565 $ (1,690) $ (796) $ 16,079
Accretion - 450 174 624
December 31, 2023 $ 18,565 $ (1,240) $ (622) $ 16,703

(i) 2019 Convertible Debentures:

As at December 31, 2023, the Company has $1,315 (December 31, 2022 - $1,315)
unsecured 10% convertible debentures due on December 30, 2024 (the “Maturity Date”).
Each debenture is convertible, at the option of the holder, at any time prior to the close of
business on the last business day immediately preceding the Maturity Date, into that number
of common shares computed on the basis of the principal amount of the debentures divided
by the conversion price set in the issue. The conversion price of the outstanding debenture
is $0.23 per common share. During the year ended December 31, 2022, $50 of debentures
were converted into 217 common shares.

The interest on the debentures is payable in cash on a semi-annual basis in arrears (May
31 and November 30).

The debentures are subject to an acceleration right exercisable by the Company, which will
force the conversion of the debentures into common shares at the price set in the issue.
This right is exercisable if the Company’s common shares trade at or above a volume-
weighted average trade price on the TSX Venture Exchange (‘TSX-V") on any 20
consecutive trading days. If the acceleration right is exercised by the Company, the
conversion of the Debentures into common shares will occur upon delivering a notice to the
Debenture holder specifying the accelerated conversion date and concurrently issuing a
press release to such effect. The Company has determined that the fair value of the
acceleration right as at December 31, 2023, is of nominal value.
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9. Long-term debt (continued):
b) Convertible Debentures (continued):
(i) 2021 Convertible Debentures:

On October 28, 2021, the Company closed the offering of publicly tradable convertible
debentures for aggregate gross proceeds of $17,250. The debentures mature on October
31, 2026, and accrue interest at the rate of 7.00%, payable semi-annually in arrears on April
30 and October 31 of each year, commencing April 30, 2022. The debentures are
convertible at the holder’s option into fully-paid common shares of the Company (“Shares”)
at any time prior to the earlier of October 31, 2026 and the business day immediately
preceding the date fixed for any redemption. The conversion price is $1.06 for each common
share, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances.

At initial recognition, the $17,250 proceeds were allocated into its debt and equity
components using the residual value method. The fair value of the debt portion was
estimated at $15,252 using a discounted cash flow model method over the 5-year term using
an effective interest rate of 10%. The remainder of the net proceeds were allocated to the
equity component. The financial liability is recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Transaction costs of $903 relate to the issuance of the convertible debentures were
allocated to the liability and equity compaonents in proportion of the gross proceeds of the
offering. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognized directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are amortized over the life of the
convertible debenture.

¢) Mortgages:

HSBC (i) BDC (ii) Other (iii) Total
December 31, 2021 $ - 3 - $ 3446  $ 3,446
Issue 6,500 10,500 - 17,000
Repayment - (140) (62) (202)
Foreign exchange - - 236 236
December 31, 2022 3 6,500 $ 10,360 $ 3,620 $ 20,480
Repayment (94) (420) (32) (546)
Foreign exchange - - (84) (84)
December 31, 2023 3 6,406 $ 9,940 3 3,504 $ 19,850
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9. Long-term debt (continued):
¢) Mortgages (continued):
(i HSBC

On September 6, 2022, the Company closed a $6,500 mortgage with HSBC Bank Canada
(*HSBC”) to be applied towards the purchase of the land and buildings at the Company’s
Ayr, Ontario manufacturing facility (note 6). The mortgage is secured by a first mortgage on
the property. Payments of principal and interest are made monthly over a 25 year period.
The mortgage loan will bear interest at HSBC's Prime Rate plus 1.35%. The mortgage also
includes customary covenants such as financial ratio maintenance, insurance maintenance,
environmental regulatory compliance and limitations on, among other things additional debt,
liens, and asset sales. As at December 31, 2023, the Company was in compliance with its
covenants.

(i) Business Development Bank of Canada:

On August 26, 2022, the Company closed a $10,500 financing with Business Development
Bank of Canada ("BDC"). $6,600 of the BDC financing were used to retire an outstanding
non-revolving term credit facility with National Bank that was secured by a first mortgage on
the Company’s Brampton, Ontario manufacturing location. The remaining BDC financing
balance of $3,900 was used towards the purchase of land and buildings at the Company’s
Ayr, Ontario manufacturing facility (note 6). The facility includes customary covenants on
financial ratios. Payments of principal and interest are made monthly over a 25 year period.
The BDC financing will bear interest at BDC's Base Rate minus 0.25%, with future
downward adjustments, and is secured by, among other collateral, the land and buildings
at Brampton. As at December 31, 2023, the Company was in compliance with its covenants
(note 19).

(iii) Other Mortgage

In connection with an acquisition completed in May 2021, the Company’s subsidiary entered
into a $2,766 USD ($3,427) mortgage with a US regional bank bearing interest of US prime
rate + 0.4% per year. The mortgage is repaid over five years by 59 monthly blended principal
and interest payments of $15 USD and a balloon payment of $2,330 USD due on May 28,
2026. On July 28, 2023, the mortgage terms were revised to an interest rate of 8.9% per
year, monthly principal and interest payments of $25 USD and a balloon payment of $2,514
USD on May 28, 2026. The mortgage is secured by the land and building included in the
acquisition. The mortgage includes customary covenants such as insurance maintenance,
environmental regulatory compliance and limitations on, among other things additional debt,
liens, and asset sales. As at December 31, 2023, the Company was in compliance with its
covenants.

The senior credit facility (a), HSBC mortgage (c(i)), EDC (e), and BDC mortgage (c(ii)) are
parties to an intercreditor agreement dated August 22, 2022, and amended in October 4
2022, to include HSBC. which outlines the order of secured collateral priority. As at
December 31, 2023, the Company was in compliance with all covenants with the associated
parties.
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9. Long-term debt (continued):
d) Lease Liability:

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease
agreement or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost. On October
1, 2023 the Company committed to a leasing arrangement for high speed extrusion
equipment at the Company’s Richmond Facility for a USD$3,494, bearing incremental
borrowing interest rate of 10%, with the purpose of improving production output and
efficiency within the Company’s Industrial segment. At December 31, 2023 the
undiscounted balance of the lease liability was USD$3,489 (December 31, 2022 — USD$0).

e) Other long-term debt:

Vendor WINN loan

notes (i) (i) Other loans Total
Dec. 31, 2021 $ 4334 $ 1328 § 40 % 5,702
Proceeds, net - 28 946 974
Repayment - (268) (86) (354)
Accretion / Loss - 102 - 102
Foreign Exchange - - 24 24
Dec. 31, 2022 $ 4334 $ 1,190 $ 924 § 6,448
Proceeds, net - 110 1,719 1,829
Repayment (1,611) (403) (615) (2,629)
Accretion / Loss - 3 - 3
Foreign exchange - . (40) (40)
December 31, 2023 $ 2,723 $ 900 $ 1,988 $ 5,611
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9. Long-term debt (continued):

(i) Vendor notes:

On May 12, 2020, the Company entered into a vendor note of $500 bearing interest at 4%
per year is payable to the former owners of Shepherd. Under the terms of an agreement
with other lending parties to the Shepherd acquisition, the vendor has a subordinate interest
and is secured by a second mortgage on the property. Interest is payable quarterly and
started on August 10, 2020. The remaining principal is to be repaid on November 12, 2024.

A Vendor note of $2,223 is payable to the former owners of IPF Holdings Inc. (“IPF Note”).
Interest is payable quarterly beginning January 1, 2021. Principal of $1,111 was repaid
January 1, 2023. On December 1, 2023, the Company entered into an agreement that
amended the IPF Note to increase the interest rate fram 3.75% to the market rate of 5.75%
effective January 1, 2024. In addition, the $2,223 principal payment due on December 31,
2023 was amended to $300 on January 8, 2024 and the balance in monthly instalments of
$40 beginning on February 1, 2024 and ending on August 31, 2027. The Company
determined that the impact to the carrying value of the IPF Note, as a result of the
amendment was insignificant. The amendment was accounted for as an extinguishment of
the original financial liability and recognition of a new financiat liability, without adjustment
to the carrying amount due to the difference deemed to be not significant.
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9. Long-term debt (continued):
e) Other long-term debt (continued):
(i) Western Innovation Initiative loan:

On June 20, 2014, the Company entered into a Western Innovation Initiative Agreement
with Western Economic Diversification Canada (“WINN”). The WINN agreement provided
the Company with an interest-free, repayable loan of $1,600 from the government.

On August 7, 2018, the Company entered into a second WINN agreement. The second
WINN agreement provides the Company with an interest-free, repayable contribution from
the government not to exceed $850 towards total project cost estimated at $1,750. The
project funds are directed at the Company’s development and commercialization of its non-
toxic high-heat bioplastic food containers for the grocery, take-out, and consumer markets.
Such funds are to be repaid monthly over five years commencing October 1, 2021. The
claim period for shared project costs commenced April 1, 2018.

During 2022 and 2023, the Company agreed and WINN amended the monthly repayments
for the first and second WINN grants. Full repayment will be completed July 1, 2025 and
March 2027 for the first and second WINN loans respectively. At December 31, 2023, the
undiscounted balance of the WINN loans is $1,054 (December 31, 2022 - $1,347).

As the funds were advanced, for 2023 the Company recognized a gain and discounted the
WINN loan by $42 as a result of the imputed interest benefit received from the interest-free
WINN loan.

f) Contingent Consideration Liability:

In conjunction with a completed acquisition in 2020, if the appraised value of the owned real
estate is greater than or equal to $9,500 at a date between the May 12, 2023 and May 12,
2025, the Company shall pay to the vendors an additional $2,250 as early as May 12, 2024 or
at the latest November 12, 2025 subject to the timing of the appraisal. If the appraised value is
not greater than or equal to $9,500 at a date between the May 12, 2023 and May 12, 2025,
then the contingent earnout amount wili be reduced to zero. In 2023, the contingent event
occurred, and the amount is payable. The Company, on acquisition, recognized the contingent
earnout at a fair value of $1,674 using a discount rate of 7.4% and a payout date of May 12,
2024. After the payout date, monthly interest is due on any unpaid balance at a rate equal to
the Bank of Montreal Canadian Prime Commercial Lending Rate plus 2% per annum until the
earnout payment and accrued interest is paid in full. The contingent consideration liability is
$2,183 at December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022 - $2,035).
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10. Share capital and share-based payments:

(8) Common and preferred share capital:

Authorized and issued:
Unlimited number of common shares without par value.
Unlimited number of preferred shares without par value, issuable in series.

As at December 31, 2023, 279,040 common shares were issued and outstanding
(December 31, 2022 — 241,707).

Private Placement

In June 2023, the Company completed a private placement of 35,714 units at a price of $0.14
per unit for gross proceeds of $5,000. Each unit is comprised of one common share and one
common share warrant of the Company. Each warrant entitles its holder to acquire one share
of the Company at a price of $0.19 per share within the 30-month period following the closing
of the private placement. Insiders of the Company subscribed for a total of 22,565 units of the
private placement for total gross proceeds of $3,159. The proceeds were allocated between
share capital and warrants, which was determined using the residual value method, with
common shares being valued at the trading price as of the date of the private placement.

The Company paid cash commission, legal and other related fees totaling $531 and also
granted 2,072 non-transferable 30-month compensation warrants to acquire 2,072 common
shares of the Company at a price of $0.14 per share. The fair value at grant date of the
compensation warrants issued was $86 based on the Black-Scholes pricing model and was
recorded as a share issuance cost. Expected volatility was determined based on the
Company’s historic trading prices.

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair value of the warrants issued were:

Risk-free interest rate 4.5%
Dividend yield 0.0%
Expected life (years) 25
Volatility 54.7%
Forfeiture rate 0.0%
Common share price at grant date $0.1
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10. Share capital and share-based payments (continued):
(8) Common and preferred share capital (continued):
Special Warrants Offering:

In June 2022, the Company completed the offering of 16,403 Special Warrants (“the offering”)
at an issue price of $0.40 per Special Warrant for gross proceeds of $6,561. In connection with
the offering, the Company paid an aggregate cash commission of $385, representing 6.0% of
the aggregate gross proceeds of the offering, and issued an aggregate of 963 Compensation
Warrants representing 6.0% of the aggregate number of Special Warrants issued pursuant to
the offering. Each Compensation Warrant will be exercisable at a price of $0.40 for one
common share of the Company for 24 months from the closing date.

Pursuant to the terms of the offering, each Special Warrant automatically converted, for no
additional consideration and with no further action on the part of the holder thereof, into one
unit of the Company (a "unit") on October 4, 2022. Each unit consists of one common share of
the Company and one half of one common share purchase warrant of the Company. The
proceeds were allocated between share capital and warrants, which was determined using the
residual value method, with common shares being valued at the trading price as of the date of
the private placement.

Each full Warrant will entitle the holder thereof to acquire one common share of the Company
at a price per Warrant Share of $0.52 for a period of 24 months from the closing of the offering.
The expiry date of the Warrants is subject to acceleration upon 30 days’ notice by the Company
if the volume weighted average trading price of the common shares of the Company exceeds
$0.65 for a period of 20 consecutive trading days ending at any time following the date which
is 12 months following the closing date of the offering.

Shares for debenture conversion and debt repayment:

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company issued 217 shares at an average
conversion price of $0.23 per share pursuant to the conversion of $50 of outstanding
debentures.
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10. Share capital and share-based payments (continued):
(b) Share options:

The change in the number of the Company’s stock options follows:

Weighted

average

Options exercise price

QOutstanding at December 31, 2021 8,032 $ 0.28
Issuance of options 1,155 0.66
Exercise of options (302) 0.13
Forfeiture of options (269) 0.82
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 8,616 $ 0.30
Issuance of options 1,051 0.27
Exercise of options (100) 0.15
Forfeiture of options (941) 0.39
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 8,626 $ 0.31
Exercisable at December 31, 2023 6,630 $ 0.21

Weighted average

Number Number remaining life

Range of exercise prices outstanding exercisable (in years)
$0.10 to $0.15 4,206 3,939 46
$0.16 to $0.20 1,768 1,768 1.8
$0.21 to $0.25 1,147 196 7.8
$0.26 to $1.29 1,505 727 47
8,626 6,630 47
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10. Share capital and share-based payments (continued):

(b) Share options (continued):

(c)

The weighted average fair value per option granted in the year ended December 31, 2023 was
$0.14 (year ended December 31, 2022 - $0.66). In the year ended December 31, 2023, the
Company recognized share based compensation expense of $284 (year ended December 31,
2022 - $269). The fair value of options granted were measured based on the Black-Scholes
pricing model. Expected volatility was determined based on comparable publicly listed
companies. The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at the modification and grant

dates follows:

Year ended Year ended
Dec. 31, 2023 Dec. 31, 2022
Risk-free interest rate 3.7% 0.3-3.8%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%
Expected life (years) 4 4
Volatility 77.2% 77.8%
Forfeiture rate 0.0% 0.0%
Common share price at grant date $0.20 $0.40-$0.62
Share purchase warrants:
Weighted average
Warrants exercise price
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 4,193 $ 0.50
Issuance of warrants upon conversion (nhote (10(a)) 8,201 0.52
Issuance of warrants to brokers note (10(a)) 963 0.40
Exercise of warrants (1,989) 0.19
Forfeiture of warrants (1,048) 0.32
Qutstanding at December 31, 2022 10,320 $ 058
Issuance of warrants (nhote 10(a)) 35,714 0.19
Issuance of warrants to brokers (note (10(a)) 2,072 0.14
Expiration of warrants (1,156) 1.20
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 46,950 $ 0.25
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10. Share capital and share-based payments (continued):

(c) Share purchase warrants (continued):

~—

Weighted average

Warrants Exercise remaining life
Expiry date outstanding price (in years)
June 1, 2024 (note 10(a)) 8,201 0.52 0.42
June 1, 2024 (note 10(a)) 963 0.40 0.42
December 21, 2025 (note 10(a)) 35,714 0.19 1.98
December 21, 2025 (note 10(a)) 2,072 0.14 1.98
46,950 5 0.25 1.67
Other equity incentives:
RSUs DSUs PSUs Total
December 31, 2021 2,996 128 493 3,617
Unit Issuance 2,647 - 2,667 5,314
Forfeiture/cancellation (543) - (213) (756)
Share Issuance upon vesting {1,553) - (561) (2,114)
December 31, 2022 3,547 128 2,386 6,061
Unit Issuance 3,087 - 3,507 6,594
Forfeiture/cancellation (1,190) (16) (609) (1,815)
Share Issuance upon vesting (1,436) (36) (47) (1,519)
December 31, 2023 4,008 76 5,237 9,321

Pursuant to the Company’s Omnibus Equity Incentive Compensation Plan, the Company
issued restricted share units ("RSUs") which vest over a period of two or three years; deferred
share units (DSUs) which vest over a period of two years; and performance share units (PSUs)
which vest in accordance with the achievement of certain performance criteria over a period of
three years. In the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recognized share based
compensation expense of $1,553 (year ended December 31, 2022 - $1,880).

Each unit entitles the holder to receive either one Common Share from treasury, the cash
equivalent of one Common Share or a combination of cash and Common Shares, as the Board
may determine in its sole discretion. The Company intends to settle these units in shares. The
average value of the RSUs and DSUs was measured on the date of grant at $0.24 per unit,
which was the closing price of share on the date of grant, for a total of $713 which will be
amortized over the life of the respective terms (Year ended December 31, 2022 - $0.64 -
$1,689).

The Company granted PSUs based on achievement of internal operating performance metrics
as detailed by management. The total fair value for the PSUs of $841 on date of grant,
estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation approach, will be amortized over the life of the
respective terms (year ended December 31, 2022 - $534)
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1.

12,

Related party transactions:

The following table sets forth the remuneration of directors and key management personnel:

Year ended December 31

2023 2022

Salaries, consulting and director fees $ 1,359 §$ 1,961
Share based payments® 842 1,013
$ 2201 % 2974
0] Share-based payments are the fair value of options granted and the amortized value of RSU, DSU, and PSU

units granted to directors and key management personnel.

As at December 31, 2023, $38 (December 31, 2022 - $105) was due to directors and officers of
the Company for accrued bonus, management, consulting, director fees and expense
reimbursement.

Insiders, defined as executives, directors and entities holding 10% or more of the Company’s
equity, of the Company subscribed for $3,159 of the $5,000 private placement completed in June
2023 (note 10(a)).

Income taxes:

The income taxes recognized in profit or loss are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2023 2022

Current tax expense $ - $ -
Deferred tax recovery (2,688) (216)
$ (2,688) $ (216)

The provision for income taxes reported differs from the amounts computed by applying statutory
Canadian federal and provincial tax rates to the loss before tax due to the following:

Year ended December 31

2023 2022
Loss before income taxes $ (18,169) $ (11,798)
Expected income tax recovery at 27.0% (2021 - 27.0%) (4,906) (3,185)
Permanent adjustments and other 2,393 292
Differing effective tax rates in other jurisdictions 626 87
Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets (801) 2,580
Total income tax recovery $ (2,688) $ (216)
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12. Income taxes (continued):

The approximate tax effect of each item that gives rise to the Company's recognized deferred tax

assets and liabilities as December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carry forwards $ 5,350 $ 1,417

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets (2,089) (1,445)
Property, plant and equipment (2,762) (2,347)
Long-term debt and other (1,089) (902)
$ (590) $ (3,278)

The Company's movement of net deferred tax liabilities is described below:

Year ended December 31

2023 2022
At January 1 $ (3,278) $ (3,493)
Deferred income tax (expense) recovery 2,688 216
Equity - 1
At December 31 $ (590) $ (3,278)

The Company has the following deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which

no deferred tax assets have been recognized:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022

Non-capital losses $ 34,187 $ 37,258
Property and equipment 68 721
Intangible assets 5,021 4,022
Financing fees 8,627 2,216
Other 3,166 3,324
3 51,039 3 47,541

At December 31, 2023 the Company has non-capital loss carried forward in Canada and USA
aggregating $50,039 (December 31, 2022 - $40,765) which expires over the period between 2035

and 2041, available to offset future taxable income in Canada.

Tax attributes are subject to review, and potential adjustment, by a competent authority.

In addition, the Company has $633 (December 31, 2022 - $633) of SR&ED expenditure pool which
is available to reduce future taxable income. This amount carries forward indefinitely.
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13.

14,

15.

Cost of product revenue:

The following is a breakdown of the Company’s cost of product revenue.

Year ended December 31

2023 2022
Variable cost of product $ 48,749 §$ 67,744
Fixed factory overhead 5,732 5,238
Depreciation 2,068 1,662

$ 56,549 $ 74,644

Variable cost of product includes direct material, labour, and inbound freight.

Fixed factory overhead includes allocated costs such as utilities, insurance, maintenance, and
property taxes.

Selling, general, and administrative (SG&A):

The following is a breakdown of the Company'’s selling, general and administrative expenses.

Year ended December 31

2023 2022
SG&A wages $ 9,148 § 9,488
SG&A other 3,815 5,479
Product development 620 741
Acquisition related activity and one-time charges 1,211 2,164
$ 14794 § 17,872

Management of capital:

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to pursue its strategy of organic growth combined with strategic acquisitions and to
deploy capital to provide an appropriate return on investment to its shareholders. in the
management of capital, the Company includes loans, share capital and contributed surplus.

In order to maintain its capital structure, the Company, is dependent on debt and equity funding
and when necessary, raises capital through issuance of equity instruments. The Company
manages its capital structure and adjusts it in light of economic conditions. The Company, upon
approval from its Board of Directors, will make changes to its capital structure as deemed
appropriate under the specific circumstances. To date, no dividends have been paid to the
Company’s shareholders and none are planned.

The Company is subject to certain covenants on its credit facility and long-term debt. Along with
customary covenants such as limitations on, among other things, additional debt, liens,
investments, acquisitions and capital expenditures, future dividends and asset sales, the loans
require maintenance of minimum liquidity amounts and EBITDA targets. Other than these required
covenants, the Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The
Company is in compliance with all covenants which have not been previously waived as of
December 31, 2023.
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16. Financial risk management and financial instruments:

(@

(b)

(©

Overview:

The Company is exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability
to achieve its strategic growth objectives. The main objectives of the Company’s risk
management process are to ensure that risks are properly identified and that the capital base
is adequate in relation to those risks. The principal financial risks to which the Company is
exposed are described below.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as fluctuations in the prices of inputs
for materials, foreign exchange rates or interest rates, will affect the Company’s income or the
value of its financial instruments. The Company does not engage in risk management practices
such as hedging or derivatives.

A portion of the Company’s operations are performed in US dollars, giving rise to exposure to
market risks from foreign exchange rates.

Currency risk:
(i) Exposure to currency risk:

The Company is exposed to financial risks because of exchange rate fluctuations and the
volatility of these rates. At December 31, 2023, total assets include cash of USD$4,970
(December 31, 2022 - USD$7,294) and receivables of US$6,349 (December 31, 2022 -
US$5,703); total liabilities include payables and accruals of US$12,490 (December 31,
2022 - US$9,091), and long-term debt of US$20,102 (December 31, 2022 - US$17,311).

(i) Sensitivity analysis:

A change of the US dollar against the Canadian dollar as at December 31, 2023, and 2022
would have increased or decreased net loss by the amount shown below. The analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Profit or loss
2023 2022

10% change of the US dollar $ 2,127 $ 1,341
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16. Financial risk management and financial instruments (continued):

(d)

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is not able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due or can do so only at excessive cost. The Company mitigates liquidity risk by holding
sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its short-term financial obligations. The
Company'’s growth is primarily financed through the issuance of equity and debt. Most of the
Company’s financial liabilities recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are due
within 60 days.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities.

Carrying Contractual Less than
amount cash flows 1 year Year 2 Year 3 Year 4+
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
and accrued liabilities $ 21178 3 21,178 § 21,178 $ -$ - 3 -
Loans payable 65,536 68,255 8,934 4,557 37,930 16,834

$ 86714 § 89,433 35 30,112 § 4,557 $ 37,930 § 16,834

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly
earlier, or at significantly different amounts.

As at December 31, 2023, the Company had issued letters of credit to key suppliers totaling
USD$7,250 (December 31, 2022 — USD$2,400).

Credit risk:

The Company’s exposure to credit risk primarily arises from the possibility that its customers
may fail to meet their obligations. The Company has credit evaluation, approval and monitoring
processes in place which mitigates these potential credit risks. The Company continually
evaluates the collectability of accounts receivable and records an allowance for doubtful
accounts if required, which reduces the receivables by the amount of any expected credit
losses. The failure of a significant customer could have a material adverse effect on the
Company. At December 31, 2023, trade and other receivables total $9,131 (December 31,
2022 - $9,360). There is allowance for doubtful accounts of $36 included in this balance
(December 31, 2022 - $20), which management believes adequately reflects the Company’s
expected credit losses. The provision for allowance for doubtful accounts is recognized within
operating expenses, if any.
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16. Financial risk management and financial instruments (continued):
() Fair values of financial instruments:

The Company categorizes its fair value estimates using a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used to measure fair value. The fair value hierarchy has three levels based on the
reliability of the inputs used to determine fair value as follows:

Level 1: Values based upon unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible
at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Values based upon quoted prices in markets that are not active or model inputs that
are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset
or liability.

Level 3: Values based upon prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both
unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and accounts
payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of
these instruments. The Company’s borrowings are at both fixed and floating rates to offset
financial risk, with most carried at a variable rate. The carrying value of the credit facility and
long-term debt, approximates their fair values as the interest rate environment has not
materially impacted their fair values since the date of issue. The Company’s 2019 Convertible
Debentures and 2021 Convertible debentures are fixed rate debt at 10% and 7% and principal
balances outstanding of $1,315 and $17,250 respectively (note 9(b)).

The Company has no financial instruments which are measured at fair value at December 31,
2023 with the exception of contingent consideration (note 9(f)) which are considered Level 2.
The value of the contingent consideration is based on appraised value of the underlying real
estate asset.
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17. Segmented information:

All of the Company’s operations are within the packaging and consumer goods manufacturing
industry, and its major products are broken out into separate business groups: Industrial,
Packaging, General Merchandise, Commercial Business Supplies, and Services. The majority of
the Company’s operations are performed within the United States and Canada, with 87% of total
revenue coming from customers in the United States and 13% in Canada. 48% of the reportable
segments assets are allocated in the Company's Canadian operations, and 52% are allocated to
the Company’s USA operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s significant reportable segments
aggregates its subsidiaries operating performance into five main business groups.

The Company’s chief operating decision maker (Chief Executive Officer) evaluates segment
performance based on segment revenue and operating earnings defined as “net income before
corp. costs”. Net income before corp. costs is comprised of each segments discrete revenues, cost
of product revenue, logistics and fulfillment, and SG&A.

The top 4 customers for the year ended December 31, 2023 represented 33% of total revenues
(year ended December 31, 2022 — 24%).

The following is a breakdown of the Company’s operating performance by business group for the

year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

General

Commercial

Total Industrial Packaging Merchandise Supplies Services
Dec. 31,2022
Revenue $ 100,966 $ 66,776 § 30,862 § 1,308 80 1,940
Net income, before corp. 8,164 4,187 2,758 14 9 1,196
costs
Depreciation and 3,557 2,719 838 -
Amortization
Capital Expenditures 17,570 13,026 4544 -
Reportable segments 78,231 53,679 24 552
assets
Dec. 31, 2023
Revenue $ 76,583 $ 35931 § 37,636 $ 1,256 48 1,712
Net income, before corp. 6,655 (1,073) 6,953 342 21) 412
costs
Depreciation and 4,239 2,993 1,246
Amortization
Capital Expenditures 2,197 856 1,341
Reportable segments 84,864 57,912 29,752
assets
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17. Segmented information (continued):

The following is a reconciliation of total reportable segment net income, before corporate costs to net

loss before taxes:

Year ending

Dec. 31, 2023 Dec. 31, 2022
Reportable segment net income, before corp. costs $ 6,655 $ 8164
Parent company costs (unallocated) (7,233) (6,867)
SG&A (unallocated) (5,676) (2,572)
Adjustments to reconcile fo net loss before taxes:
Share based compensation (1,837) (2,150)
Depreciation and amortization (2,309) (1,950)
Financing costs (7,676) (5,550)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (88) (847)
Loss on debt repayment and conversion - (1,148)
Gain on interest free loan 42 15
Net loss before taxes $ (17,946) $ (11,798)

18. Supplementary cash flow information:

Year ended December 31

2023 2022
Non-cash investing activities:
Capitalized equipment and real estate lease asset $ 4,623 $ 1,031
Business acquisition funded by contingent
consideration liability (note 4) $ - $ 677
Non-cash financing activities:
Capitalized equipment and real estate lease liability 3 4,623 $ 1,440
Shares issued for conversion of debentures $ - $ 46
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19. Subsequent events:

a)

b)

d)

On February 14, 2024, the Company announced the launch of a non-brokered private
placement financing (the “Offering”) for 33,333 units (the “Units”) of the Company at a price of
$0.06 per Unit (the “Issue Price”) for aggregate gross proceeds of $2,000. In order to
accommodate potential demand from existing and/or new shareholders, the Offering is also
subject to an over-allotment option, allowing the Company to issue an additional 50,000 Units
for gross proceeds of $3,000. Each Unit will consist of one common share in the capital of the
Company (a “Unit Share”) and one common share purchase warrant (a “Warrant”) of the
Company. Each Warrant will entitle the holder thereof to acquire one common share (a
“Warrant Share”) at an exercise price per Warrant Share of $0.08 for a period of 30 months
from the closing of the Offering

All securities to be issued pursuant to the above referenced Offering will be subject to a
statutory four-month hold period. The Offering is subject to a number of conditions, including
without limitation, approval of the TSX Venture Exchange.

On February 26, 2024, the Company refinanced the mortgage outstanding with Business
Development Bank of Canada (“BDC") on the land and building located at its Brampton, Ontario
facility. The BDC mortgage will be refinanced with a $12,900 3-year fixed rate mortgage,
featuring a 25-year amortization period. Principal and interest will be paid monthly at a rate
within a range of 5.8% - 6.2% per annum. The rate will be fixed at 5.75% for a three year term.
The Company anticipates receiving net proceeds of approximately $2,100 following repayment
of the BDC mortgage and the remaining vendor take back loan associated with the Shepherd
Thermoforming & Packaging Inc. acquisition.

On January 4, 2024, an aggregate of share options to purchase 1,177 common shares were
granted to employees, executive management and members of the Company’s board of
directors, with an exercise price of $0.07 per common share. Twenty-five percent (25%) of
each grant vests on January 4, 2025 with the balance vesting in equal monthly increments over
the following three years. Each option is exercisable, once vested, for a period of seven years
from the date of the grant. 947 of the share options described were granted to members of the
Company’s board of directors and executive management.

The Company also granted an aggregate of:

e 2,862 PSUs, of which 2,862 PSUs were issued to executive management, vesting in
accordance with certain peer group share price performance criteria for the 2024
calendar year established by the board of directors of the Company; and

e 4,104 RSUs, of which 3,414 were issued to members of the board of directors and
executive management, vesting 1/3 per year on each of January 4, 2025, January 4,
2026 and January 4, 2027.
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Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023



MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of good natured Products Inc.
were prepared by management in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34 Interim
Financial Reporting issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The most significant of
these accounting principles have been disclosed in the notes to the unaudited interim consolidated
financial statements. Management acknowledges responsibility for the preparation and presentation of
the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements, including responsibility for significant
accounting judgments and estimates and the choice of accounting principles and methods that are
appropriate to the Company’s circumstances. Management has established processes, which are in
place to provide them sufficient knowledge to support management representations that they have
exercised reasonable diligence that (i) the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements do not
contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or
that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it is
made, as of the date of and for the periods presented by the unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements and (i) the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company, as of the date of
and for the periods presented by the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements. The Board of
Directors is responsible for reviewing and approving the unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements together with other financial information of the Company and for ensuring that management
fulfills its financial reporting responsibilities. An Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in
fulfilling this responsibility. The Audit Committee meets with management to review the financial
reporting process and the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements together with other
financial information of the Company. The Audit Committee reports its findings to the Board of Directors
for its consideration in approving the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements together with
other financial information of the Company for issuance to the shareholders. Management recognizes
its responsibility for conducting the Company’s affairs in compliance with established financial
standards, and applicable laws and regulations, and for maintaining proper standards of conduct for its
activities.

NOTICE TO READER

Under National Instrument 51-102 “Continuous Disclosure Requirements”, Part 4, Subsection 4.3(3)(a),
if an auditor has not performed a review of the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements,
they must be accompanied by a notice indicating that the unaudited consolidated financial statements
have not been reviewed by an auditor.

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared by and are the responsibility of the Company’s management. The Company’s independent
auditor has not performed a review of these unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the
three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 in accordance with standards established by the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada for a review of interim financial statements by an entity’s
auditor.



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

31-Mar 31-Dec
2024 2023
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,316 $ 7,300
Trade and other receivables 7,508 9,131
Inventory (note 3) 11,557 11,343
Prepaid expenses 789 907
24,170 28,681
Non-current assets:
Property and equipment (note 4) 44,784 44 477
Right-of-use assets (note 5) 8,274 8,474
Customer relationships (note 6) 1,558 1,603
Intangible and other assets (note 6) 4,329 4,391
Goodwill (note 6) 8,451 8,414
$ 91,566 $ 96,040
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 20,620 $ 21,178
Contingent consideration liability 2,219 2,183
Current portion of long-term debt (note 7) 5,913 6,751
28,752 30,112
Non-Current liabilities:
Credit Facility (note 7) 11,034 13,513
Convertible debentures (note 7) 15,553 15,388
Mortgages (note 7) 22,473 19,347
Lease Liability (note 7) 5,004 5,465
Other long-term debt (note 7) 2,430 2,889
Deferred income tax liabilities 465 590
56,959 57,192
Shareholders’ Equity:
Comman share capital (note 8) 67,968 67,182
Contributed surplus 10,800 10,057
Foreign currency translation reserve 1,900 1,306
Deficit (74,813) (69,809)
5,855 8,736
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 3 91,566 $ 96,040

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

“Tami Kozikowski” Director “Keith Spencer” Director




GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Net Loss and Comprehensive Loss
(In thousands except per share amounts) (Unaudited)

Three months ended March 31

2024 2023
Product revenue $ 14,070 $ 20,315
Cost of product revenue (note 10) (10,134) (14,716)
Gross profit 3,936 5,599
Other (expenses) income:

Selling, general, and administrative (note 11) (3,540) (3,841)

Fulfilment and logistics (1,549) (1,908)

Share-based compensation (note 8 (b,d)) (640) (403)

Depreciation and amortization (573) (627)

Financing costs (2,290) (1,799)

Foreign exchange gain (473) 291

Gain on interest free loan - 42
Net loss before taxes (5,129) (2,646)
Deferred income tax recovery 125 125
Net loss for the period $ (5,004) $ (2,521)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Unrealized currency gain (loss) on translation of foreign operations 594 (119)
Other comprehensive loss for the period $ (4410) $ (2,640)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.02) % (0.01)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic and diluted 280,937 241,762

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
(In thousands)

Three months ended Mar. 31

2024 2023
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Net loss (5,004) (2,521)
ltems not involving cash:
Depreciation and amortization 790 842
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss 438 (127)
Amortization of right of use assets 332 256
Share based compensation 640 403
Gain on interest free loan - (42)
Financing costs 2,290 1,799
Deferred income tax (125) (125)
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Trade and other receivables 1,623 (2,058)
Inventory (214) 757
Prepaid expenses 118 185
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (558) 2,958
Finance costs paid (2,000) (1,535)
Cash (used) provided by operating activities (1,670) 792
Financing:
Issuance of common shares, net of issuance costs 889 -
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs 13,316 1,404
Repayment of long-term debt (15,134) (1,681)
Cash provided by financing activities (929) (277)
Investments:
Purchase of equipment (528) (697)
Purchase of other assets - (69)
Cash used in investing activities (528) (766)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash 143 1
(Decrease) Increase in cash (2,984) (250)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 7,300 11,860
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 4,316 11,610

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements.



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

1. Nature of Operations:

good natured Products Inc. (the “Company”) is a Canadian company incorporated under the British
Columbia Business Corporations Act. Its common shares are listed on the Canadian TSX Venture
Exchange (“TSX-V") as a Tier 2 issuer under the symbol “GDNP” and on OTCQX Best Market in
the United States under the symbol of “GDNPF”". The Company's head office is located at 814 —
470 Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada. The Company offers a broad
assortment of plant-based products made all, or in part, from the maximum possible amount of
rapidly renewable resources. All the Company'’s operations are within the packaging and consumer
goods manufacturing industry. The Company manufactures and/or sources over 400 products that
are grouped into five business groups: General Merchandise, Packaging, Industrial, Commercial
Supplies, and Services. The Company offers its products through wholesale, direct to business,
and retail channels.

The Company recognized a net loss for the 3 months ending March 31, 2024 of $5,004, and
realized cash used in operations of $1,670. As at December 31, 2023, the Company has an
accumulated deficit of $74,813 and an excess of current liabilities over current assets of $4,582.
The continuing operations of the Company are dependent upon its ability to successfully complete
discussions with its primary lender regarding future waivers, and successful renegotiations with its
existing covenants. While the Company has successfully negotiated waivers in the past, there can
be no assurance that the outcome of those discussions will be completed on a timely basis under
terms acceptable to the Company.

The above conditions present material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts
and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue
as a going concern. Such adjustments could be material.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which
assumes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business for the foreseeable future.



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unauditeqd)

2. Basis of presentation:

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance:

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements were prepared using the
same accounting policies and methods as those used in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, and have been prepared in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”). Accordingly, these unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements do not include all the information required for full annual financial statements and
should be read in conjunction with the Company’s annual audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.

These unaudited consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on May 28, 2024.

Basis of measurement:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for items that are measured at fair value. The Company has no financial instruments
which are measured at fair value at December 31, 2023 with the exception of contingent
consideration.

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments:
(i) Significant estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS
Accounting Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. The underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that management believes to be reasonable under
the circumstances, and are subject to change as new events occur, as more industry
experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained and as the Company’s
operating environment changes.



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

2. Basis of presentation (continued):
(c) Use of estimates, assumptions, and judgments:
(/) Significant estimates and assumptions (continued):

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period during which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected. Significant areas having estimation uncertainty include
the following:

Going concern:

Management applied judgment assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern when preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2023. Management considered a wide range of factors including possible
outcomes of discussions with its primary lender with regards to future waivers and
renegotiations around its existing covenants. As a result of the assessment and as
described in Note 1, management concluded the going concern basis of accounting is
appropriate however there are material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
and do not include any adjustments to the carrying amounts and classification of assets
and liabilities and reported revenues and expenses that may otherwise be required if the
going concern basis was not appropriate. Such adjustments could be material.

3. Inventory

March 31 December 31

2024 2023
Raw materials $ 6,638 % 6,557
Finished goods 4919 4,786
Total $ 11,557 $ 11,343

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, inventory valued at $6,842 was expensed as cost
of goods sold and reflected within cost of product revenue (2023 - $10,528).



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

4, Property and equipment:

Manufacturing Other Accumulated
Land Building Equipment Equip. Depreciation Total
Dec. 31,2022 § 8,428 $ 16,548 $ 22,660 $ 203 $ (3,147) $ 44,692
Addit.ions - 163 2,469 - (2,471) 161
:)‘(’;ﬁf:ge (10) (125) (265) s 24 (376)
Dec. 31,2023 § 8,418 $ 16,586 $ 24864 % 203 $ (5,594) $ 44,477
Additions Z 5 523 4 (638) (110)
:;;ﬁf:ge 1 132 324 - (50) 417
Mar. 31,2024 $ 8,429 $ 16,723 % 25711  § 203§ (6,282) $ 44,784

5. Right-of use-assets

The Company entered into leases for manufacturing equipment, buildings, and office spaces for its
operations. The Company is required to recognize a right of use assets for the underlying assets
from these leases.

Accumulated Net Book

Cost amortization Value

December 31, 2022 $ 6,287 $ (1,286) $ 5,001
Additions 4,568 (1,062) 3,506
Foreign exchange (46) 13 (33)
December 31, 2023 $ 10,809 $ (2,335) $ 8,474
Additions - (332) (332)
Foreign exchange 159 (27) 132
March 31, 2024 $ 10,968 $ (2694) $ 8,274




GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

6. Customer relationships, intangible and other assets, and goodwill:

Customer Accumulated Net Book
Lists Amortization Value
December 31, 2022 $ 9,282 $ (2,835) $ 6,447
Additions - (619) (1,137)
Impairment (4,184) - (4,184)
Foreign exchange (43) 2 (41)
December 31, 2023 $ 5,055 $ (3,452) §$ 1,603
Additions - (69) (69)
Foreign exchange 29 (5) 24
March 31, 2024 3 5,084 3 (3,526) 8 1,558
Brand and Other Accumulated Net Book
Formulas Assets Amortization Value
December 31, 2022 $ 2200 $ 2,523 $ (200) 3% 4,523
Additions - 73 (176) (103)
Foreign exchange - (29) - (29)
December 31, 2023 $ 2200 $ 2,567 $ (376) % 4,391
Additions - (7) (83) (90)
Foreign exchange = 30 (2) 28
March 31, 2024 $ 2,200 $ 259 § (461) % 4,329
Other assets consist of capitalized development costs and other intangibles.
Net Book
Goodwill Value
December 31, 2022 $ 8,966 $ 8,966
Impairment (504) (504)
Foreign exchange (48) (48)
December 31, 2023 $ 8414  $ 8,414
Foreign exchange 37 37
March 31, 2024 $ 8,451 3 8,451

The Company operates four operating segments to which goodwill, generated through various
acquisitions, has been allocated. These comprise the Richmond, Houston, Ayr and Brampton
CGUs. All goodwill and intangibles are assessed and tested at the CGU, or group of CGU level to

which they have been allocated.

The Company performs goodwill and indefinite life intangibles impairment testing annually or at any
time if an indicator of impairment exists. In determining the recoverable amount of its CGUs, the
Company estimates the value in use, which is determined using a discounted cash flow model. As
of December 31, 2023, an impairment loss of $4,688 was recognized against its intangible assets.



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

7. Long-term debt:

Convertible Lease Other Long-
Credit Facility ~ Debentures Mortgage Liability term debt Total
(a) {b) {) {d) (e)
Dec. 31, 2022 $ 13,854 $ 16,079 $ 20,480 $ 5052 § 6448 § 61,913
Proceeds, net 4,251 - - 4,623 1,829 10,703
Repayment (4,526) - (546) (1,940) (2,692) (9,641)
Accretion / Loss 263 624 - - 3 890
Foreign Exchange (329) - (84) (59) (40) (512)
Dec. 31, 2023 $ 13513 § 16703 § 19,850 $§ 7676 $ 5,611 $ 63,353
Proceeds, net 454 - 12,862 - - 13,316
Repayment (3,332) - (9,994) (520) (1,288) (15,134)
Accretion / Loss 66 165 - - 23 254
Foreign Exchange 333 - 84 155 46 618
Mar. 31, 2024 $ 11034 § 16868 § 22802 $ 7311 $ 4392 § 62407
Less current portion - (1,315) (329) (2,307) (1,962) (5,913)
Non-current portion $ 11,034 § 15553 § 22473 $ 5004 $ 2430 $ 56494

The required undiscounted annual repayments of the Company’s long-term debt for the twelve months
ending March 31 follow:

cotasity (ST, Moo 1 R s
2025 $ - § 1,315 $ 39 § 2307 § 1,962 $ 5913
2026 - - 351 2,303 1,464 4,118
2027 11,670 17,250 3,652 2,015 698 35,285
2028 - - 6,671 686 401 7,758
2029 and beyond - - 11,799 - - 11,799

$ 11670 § 18565 § 22,802 $ 731 $ 4525 $ 64,873

) Subsequent to the fiscal period end, an amendment to the Company’s convertible unsecured
subordinated debentures due October 31, 2026 was approved via an extraordinary resolution (Note
13(a)). The list of amendments included: a redemption of 50% of the $17,250 principal amount
outstanding reducing the principal amount to $8,625 in consideration for the issuance of 70,500
common shares of the Company; an increase of the interest rate from 7.0% to 10.0% per annum;
and an extension of the maturity date from October 31, 2026 to December 15, 2029.
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GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

8. Share capital and share-based payments:

(a) Common and preferred share capital:

Authorized and issued:
Unlimited number of common shares without par value.
Unlimited number of preferred shares without par value, issuable in series.

As at March 31, 2024, 294,707 common shares were issued and outstanding (December 31,
2023 — 279,040).

Private Placement

In February 2024, the Company completed a private placement of 15,640 units at a price of
$0.06 per unit for gross proceeds of $338. Each unit is comprised of one common share and
one common share warrant of the Company. Each warrant entitles its holder to acquire one
share of the Company at a price of $0.08 per share within the 30-month period following the
closing of the private placement.

The Company paid finder fees totaling $8 and also granted 145 non-transferable 30-month
compensation warrants to acquire 145 common shares of the Company at a price of $0.06 per
share. The fair value at grant date of the compensation warrants issued was $2 based on the
Black-Scholes pricing model and was recorded as a share issuance cost. Expected volatility
was determined based on comparable publicly listed companies.

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair value of the February 2024 warrants issued

were:

Risk-free interest rate 4.4%
Dividend yield 0.0%
Expected life (years) 25
Volatility 40.0%
Forfeiture rate 0.0%
Common share price at grant date $0.1

In June 2023, the Company completed a private placement of 35,714 units at a price of $0.14
per unit for gross proceeds of $5,000. Each unit is comprised of one common share and one
common share warrant of the Company. Each warrant entitles its holder to acquire one share
of the Company at a price of $0.19 per share within the 30-month period following the closing
of the private placement. Insiders of the Company subscribed for a total of 779 Units of the
private placement for total gross proceeds of $109.

The Company paid cash commission, legal and other related fees totaling $556 and also
granted 2,072 non-transferable 30-month compensation warrants to acquire 2,072 common
shares of the Company at a price of $0.14 per share. The fair value at grant date of the
compensation warrants issued was $86 based on the Black-Scholes pricing model and was
recorded as a share issuance cost. Expected volatility was determined based on comparable
publicly listed companies.

11



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

8. Share capital and share-based payments (continued):
(a) Common and preferred share capital (continued):

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair value of the June 2023 warrants issued were:

Risk-free interest rate 4.5%
Dividend yield .0.0%
Expected life (years) 25
Volatility 54.7%
Forfeiture rate 0.0%
Common share price at grant date $0.1

(b) Share options:

The change in the number of the Company’s stock options follows:

Weighted

average

Options exercise price

Outstanding at December 31, 2022 8,616 $ 0.30
Issuance of options 1,051 0.27
Exercise of options (100) 0.15
Forfeiture of options (941) 0.39
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 8,626 $ 0.31
Issuance of options 2,485 0.07
Forfeiture of options (2,508) 0.28
Outstanding at March 31, 2024 8,603 $ 0.25
Exercisable at March 31, 2024 5,266 $ 0.26

Weighted average

Number Number remaining life

Range of exercise prices outstanding exercisable (in years)
$0.05 to $0.15 5,481 3,193 6.46
$0.16 to $0.20 1,080 1,080 1.62
$0.21 to $0.39 861 299 7.99
$0.40 to $1.29 1,161 684 4.31
6,603 5,265 5.72

12



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

8. Share capital and share-based payments (continued):

(b) Share options (continued):

(©

The weighted grant price per option granted in the three months ended March 31, 2024 was
$0.07 (year ended December 31, 2023 - $0.27). The fair value of options granted were
measured based on the Black-Scholes pricing model. Expected volatility was determined
based on comparable publicly listed companies. The inputs used in the measurement of the

fair values at the modification and grant dates follows:

Three months ended Year ended
Mar. 31, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
Risk-free interest rate 4.3% 3.7%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0%
Expected life (years) 4.0 4.0
Volatility 25.3% 77.2%
Forfeiture rate 0.0% 0.0%
Common share price at grant date $0.07 $0.20
Share purchase warrants:
Weighted average
Warrants exercise price
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 10,320 $ 0.58
Issuance of warrants (note (8(a)) 35,714 0.19
Issuance of warrants to brokers (note (8(a)) 2,072 0.14
Exercise of warrants (1,156) 1.20
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 46,950 $ 0.25
Issuance of warrants upon private placement (8(a)) 15,640 0.08
Issuance of warrants to brokers (8(a)) 144 0.06
Outstanding at March 31, 2024 62,734 $ 0.21

13



GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

8. Share capital and share-based payments (continued):

(©

(d)

Share purchase warrants (continued):

Weighted average

Warrants Exercise remaining life
Expiry date outstanding price (in years)
June 1, 2024 (note 8(a)) 8,201 0.52 0.17
June 1, 2024 (note 8(a)) 963 0.40 0.17
Dec 21, 2025 (note 8(a)) 35,714 0.19 1.73
Dec 21, 2025 (note 8(a)) 2,072 0.14 1.73
September 21, 2026 (note 8(a)) 15,640 0.08 2.22
September 21, 2026 (note 8(a)) 144 0.06 2.22
62,734 $ 0.21 1.62
Other equity incentives:
RSUs DSUs PSUs Total
December 31, 2022 3,647 128 2,386 6,061
Unit Issuance 3,087 - 3,507 6,594
Forfeiture (1,190) (16) (516) (1,815)
Share Issuance upon vesting (1,436) (36) (42) (1,519)
December 31, 2023 4,008 76 5,238 9,322
Unit Issuance 9,893 80 3,798 13,771
Forfeiture (406) - (2,700) (3,106)
Share Issuance upon vesting (27) - - (27)
March 31, 2024 13,468 156 6,336 19,960

Pursuant to the Company’s Omnibus Equity Incentive Compensation Plan, the Company
issued restricted share units (“RSUs”) which vest over a period of two or three years; deferred
share units (DSUs) which vest over a period of two years; and performance share units (PSUs)
which vest in accordance with the achievement of certain performance criteria over a period of
three years.

Each unit entitles the holder to receive either one Common Share from treasury, the cash
equivalent of one Common Share or a combination of cash and Common Shares, as the Board
may determine in its sole discretion. The Company intends to settle these units in shares. The
average value of the RSUs and DSUs was measured on the date of grant at $0.07 per unit for
a total of $532 which will be amortized over the life of the respective terms (Year ended
December 31, 2023 - $0.24 - $713).

The Company granted PSUs based on achievement of internal operating performance metrics
as detailed by management. The total value for the PSUs of $266 on date of grant will be
amortized over the life of the respective terms (Year ended December 31, 2023 - $841)

14
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023

(In thousands) (Unaudited)

9. Related party transactions
The following table sets forth the remuneration of directors and key management personnel.
Three months ended March 31
2024 2023
Salaries, consulting and director fees $ 496 $ 397
Share based payments® 328 237
$ 824 § 634
() Share-based payments are the fair vaiue of options granted and the amortized value of RSU units granted to directors
and key management personnel.
As at March 31, 2024, $3 (December 31, 2023 - $38) was due to directors and officers of the
Company for accrued bonus, consulting, director fees and expense reimbursement.
Insiders, defined as executives, directors and entities holding 10% or more of the Company’s
equity, of the Company subscribed for $3,159 of the $5,000 private placement completed in June
2023 (note 8(a)).
10. Cost of product revenue:
The following is a breakdown of the Company'’s cost of product revenue.
Three months ended Mar. 31
2024 2023
Variable cost of product $ 8463 $ 12,702
Fixed factory overhead 1,125 1,482
Depreciation 546 532
$ 10,134 $ 14,716
Variable cost of product includes direct material, labour, and inbound freight.
Fixed factory overhead includes allocated costs such as utilities, insurance, maintenance, and
property taxes.
11. Selling, general, and administrative (SG&A):

The following is a breakdown of the Company’s selling, general and administrative expenses.

Three months ended Mar. 31

2024 2023
SG&A wages $ 1935 % 2,353
SG&A other 774 1,197
Acquisition related activity and one-time charges 831 291
$ 3540 $ 3,841
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023

(In thousands) (Unaudited)

12. Segmented information:

All of the Company’s operations are within the packaging and consumer goods manufacturing
industry, and its major products are broken out into separate business groups: Industrial,
Packaging, General Merchandise, Commercial Business Supplies, and Services. The majority of
the Company’s operations are performed within the United States and Canada, with 90% of total
revenue coming from customers in the United States and 10% in Canada. 48% of the reportable
segments assets are allocated in the Company’s Canadian operations, and 52% are allocated to
the Company’s USA operations.

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s significant reportable
segments aggregates its subsidiaries operating performance into five main business groups.

The Company’s chief operating decision maker (Chief Executive Officer) evaluates segment
performance based on segment revenue and operating earnings defined as “net income before
corp. costs”. Net income before corp. costs is comprised of each segments discrete revenues, cost
of product revenue, logistics and fulfillment, and SG&A.

The top 4 customers for the three months ended March 31, 2024 represented 25% of total revenues
(year ended December 31, 2023 — 33%)..

The following is a breakdown of the Company’s operating performance by business group for the
three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023.

Total Industrial Packaging Mercﬁae::i;ae' Cor;:r:;ﬁ:sl Services
March 31, 2024
Revenue 14,070 7,116 $ 6,203 381 23 347
Net income, before corp.
costs 949 (393) 1,283 58 9 92
Depreciation and
Amortization 1,136 774 362
Capital Expenditures 528 528
Reportable segments
assels 87,217 59,809 27408
March 31, 2023
Revenue 20,315 18,992 $ 6,208 312 20 404
Net income, before corp. 1,865 1,387 387 243 4 301
costs
Depreciation and
Amortization 1,159 1,328 118
Capital Expenditures 693 1088 429
Reportable segments
assets 81,786 59,434 13,556
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

12. Segmented information (continued):

The following is a reconciliation of total reportable segment net income, before corporate costs to

net loss before taxes:

Three months ending Mar. 31

2024 2023
o e o s o s vass
zﬁ\r:lﬁ::tgldp)any costs (1,371) (1,724)
SG&A (unallocated) (831) (291)
Adjustments to reconcile to net loss before taxes:
Share based compensation (640) (403)
Depreciation and amortization (573) (627)
Financing costs (2,290) (1,799)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (473) (291)
Gain on interest free loan - 42
Net loss before taxes $ (5.129) $ (2,646)
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
(In thousands) (Unaudited)

13. Subsequent Events:

a) On April 30, 2024, the holders of the Company’s 7.0% convertible unsecured subordinated
debentures due October 31, 2026 (the “Convertible Debentures”) approved an extraordinary
resolution to amend the Convertible Debentures resulting in the following changes:

e partially redeeming (the “Partial Redemption”) an aggregate of 50% of the principal
amount outstanding of the Convertible Debentures, such that the current principal
amount of $17,250 shall be reduced to $8,625 in consideration for the issuance of
70,500 common shares of the Company, with a deemed value of $8,625 ($0.122 per
share);

e« amending the terms of the Convertible Debentures such that the interest payment
dates (currently bi-annual) shall occur once annually on December 15th of each year
(the “Accrual Date”);

¢ amending the definition of “Interest Rate” in the Convertible Debenture Indenture to
increase the interest rate on the Convertible Debentures from 7.0% to 10.0% per
annum;

o amending the terms of the Indenture to allow, at the election of the Company, for the
payment of the interest accrued on the Convertible Debentures through the issuance
of common shares;

e amending the terms of the Convertible Debentures such that the maturity of the
Convertible Debentures will be extended from October 31, 2026 to December 15,
2029;

s approving an application to de-list the Convertible Debentures from trading on the
TSXV, which de-listing is expected to occur on or around May 3, 2024; and

« the semi-annual interest payment of $604 due April 30, 2024 on the Convertible
Debentures will be deferred, such that a total of $604 will be paid in conjunction with
the first annual interest payment due December 15, 2024 on the same terms as
described above on a pro-rata basis. Payment may also be satisfied through the
issuance of common shares.

b) On February 14, 2024, the Company announced a non-brokered private placement financing
(the “Offering”) for 33,333 units (the “Units”) of the Company at a price of $0.06 per Unit (the
“Issue Price”) for aggregate gross proceeds of $2,000. In order to accommodate potential
demand from existing and/or new shareholders, the Offering is also subject to an over-allotment
option, allowing the Company to issue an additional 50,000 Units for gross proceeds of $3,000.
Each Unit will consist of one common share in the capital of the Company (a “Unit Share”) and
one common share purchase warrant (a “Warrant”) of the Company. Each Warrant will entitle
the holder thereof to acquire one common share (a “Warrant Share”) at an exercise price per
Warrant Share of $0.08 for a period of 30 months from the closing of the Offering. As at March
31, 2024, the Company has closed the first tranche of the Offering.

All securities to be issued pursuant to the above referenced Offering will be subject to a
statutory four-month hold period. The Offering is subject to a number of conditions, including
without limitation, approval of the TSX Venture Exchange.
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June 27, 2024

Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc.
Cathedral Place Building

925 West Georgia Street, Suite 902
Vancouver, BC V6C 3L2

Attention: Anthony Tillman
Senior Vice President

Dear Sirs,

Re: Proceedings under the Company’ Creditors Arrangement Act (“CCAA”) for
good natured Products Inc., et al (“GDNP” or the “Company”)
Responsibilities/Obligations and Disclosure with Respect to Cash-flow Projections

In connection with the application by GDNP for the commencement of proceedings under the CCAA in
respect of the Company, the management of the Company (“Management”) has prepared the attached
cash-flow statement and the assumptions on which the cash-flow statement is based.

GDNP confirms that:
1. the cash-flow statement and the underlying assumptions are the responsibility of GDNP;

2. all material information relevant to the cash-flow statement and to the underlying
assumptions has been made available to Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc. in its capacity as
Monitor; and

3. Management has taken all actions that it considers necessary to ensure:

a) That the individual assumptions underlying the cash-flow statement are appropriate in the
circumstances;

b) That the assumptions underlying the cash-flow statement, taken as a whole, are
appropriate in the circumstances; and

¢) That all relevant assumptions have been properly presented in the cash-flow
statement or in the notes accompanying the cash-flow statement.

TSX-V: GDNP
goodnatured.ca



good.

natured

et evev ety oty

goad natured Products Inc.

814 — 470 Granville Street, Vancouver, BC Canada V6C 1V5 1-877-286-0617

4. Management understands and agrees that the determination of what constitutes a material
adverse change in the projected cash flow or financial circumstances, for the purposes of our
monitoring the on-going activities of the Company, is ultimately at your sole discretion,
notwithstanding that Management may disagree with such determination.

5. Management understands its duties and obligations under the CCAA and that a breach of these
duties and obligations could make GDNP’s Management liable to fines and imprisonment in
certain circumstances.

6. The cash-flow statement and assumptions have been reviewed and approved by the GDNP’s

board of directors or Management has been duly authorized by GDNP’s board of directors to
prepare and approve the cash-flow assumptions.

Yours truly,

%

Name: Kerry Biggs

Title: CFO

TSX-V: GDNP
goodnatured.ca
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This is Exhibit “E” referred to in the
Affidavit #1 of Paul Antoniadis affirmed
before me at Vancouver, BC,
this 27th day of June 2024

RN =

A Commissioner/Notary Public for the
Province of British Columbia



No.
Vancouver Registry

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES’ CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT,
R.S.C. 1985, ¢c. C-36

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT,
S.B.C. 2002, c.57, AS AMENDED

AND

IN THE MATTER OF GOOD NATURED PRODUCTS INC., & THOSE ENTITIES LISTED
IN SCHEDULE “A”

PETITIONERS

CONSENT TO ACT

Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc. consents to act as the Monitor of the Petitioners pursuant to the Companies’
Creditors Arrangement Act.

Date at Vancouver, British Columbia, this 27* day of June, 2024.

ALVAREZ & MARSAL CANADA INC.

Per:  Anthony Tillman
Senior Vice President





